North West School of Psychiatry

Semester 1 Handbook

MRCPsych Course 2020 – 2022

A Psychiatry Medical Education Collaborative between mental health Trusts and Health Education North West.

Course Director - Dr Latha Hackett, Consultant in Child & Adolescent Psychiatry Deputy Course Director - Dr Dushyanthan Mahadevan, Consultant in Child & Adolescent Psychiatry

List of Contributors

Course Director

Dr Latha Hackett, Consultant in Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Latha.hackett@mft.nhs.uk

Deputy Course Director

Dr Dushyanthan Mahadevan, Consultant in Child & Adolescent Psychiatry Dushyanthan.Mahadevan@elht.nhs.uk

Module Leads

| Across the Ages | Dr Latha Hackett |
|---------------------------|------------------------|
| CAMHS | Dr Neelo Aslam |
| Forensic | Dr Victoria Sullivan & |
| | Dr Amit Sharda |
| General Adult | Dr Sally Wheeler & |
| | Dr Swanand Patwardhan |
| Intellectual Disabilities | Dr Sol Mustafa |
| Old Age | Dr Anthony Peter |
| Psychotherapy | Dr Adam Dierckx |
| Substance Misuse | Dr Patrick Horgan |
| | |

Latha.hackett@mft.nhs.uk Neelo.aslam@mft.nhs.uk Victoria.sullivan@gmmh.nhs.uk Amit.Sharda@lancashirecare.nhs.uk sally.wheeler@gmmh.nhs.uk Swanand.Patwardhan@gmmh.nhs.uk sol.mustafa@nhs.net Anthony.peter@lancashirecare.nhs.uk Adam.Dierckx@gmmh.nhs.uk Patrick.Horgan2@gmmh.nhs.uk

Trust Leads

CWP GMMH (NMGH) GMMH (Prestwich)

Lancashire Care Mersey Care

NWBH Pennine Care Dr Matthew Cahill Dr Swanand Patwardhan Dr Catrin Evans & Dr Emily Mountain Dr Clare Oakley Dr Indira Vinjamuri (covering for Dr Yenal Dundar) Dr Yogesh Sharma Dr Ema Etuk matthew.cahill1@nhs.net Swanand.Patwardhan@gmmh.nhs.uk Catrin.Evans@gmmh.nhs.uk Emily.Mountain@gmmh.nhs.uk Clare.Oakley@lancashirecare.nhs.uk indira.vinjamuri@merseycare.nhs.uk

Yogesh.Sharma@nwbh.nhs.uk ema.etuk@nhs.net

Medical Education Managers (MEM's)

| CWP | Jonathan Ruffler | jonathan.ruffler@nhs.net |
|-----------------|--------------------|--|
| GMMH | Sam Abbott | sam.abbott@gmmh.nhs.uk |
| Lancashire Care | Jacqueline Welding | jacqueline.welding@lancashirecare.nhs.uk |
| Mersey Care | Dawn McLoughlin | dawn.mcloughlin@merseycare.nhs.uk |
| NWBH | Ian Bithell | ian.bithell@nwbh.nhs.uk |
| Pennine Care | Kimberley McDowell | kimberley.mcdowell@nhs.net |

Contents

| Brief guidelines for case conference presentation9 |
|---|
| Brief guidelines for journal club presentation10 |
| Syllabus Links11 |
| Curriculum Mapping12 |
| Links to Critical Appraisal Checklists13 |
| General Adult14 |
| Semester 114 |
| Session 1: Psychosis-114 |
| Journal theme: Randomised Controlled trials on Psychosis14 |
| Learning Objectives14 |
| Expert Led Session14 |
| Case Presentation14 |
| Journal Club Presentation14 |
| '555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)14 |
| MCQs15 |
| Session 2: Depression-116 |
| Journal theme: Meta-analysis and Systematic review on Depression16 |

| Learning Objectives |
|---|
| Expert Led Session16 |
| Case Presentation16 |
| Journal Club Presentation16 |
| '555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points) 16 |
| MCQs17 |
| Session 3: Bipolar Disorder-118 |
| Journal theme: Case-control studies on Bipolar18 |
| Learning Objectives |
| Expert Led Session18 |
| Case Presentation18 |
| Journal Club Presentation18 |
| '555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points) 19 |
| MCQs19 |
| Session 4: Mental Health Act20 |
| Journal theme: Studies on MHA - Any method20 |
| Learning Objectives |
| Expert Led Session20 |
| Case Presentation |
| Journal Club Presentation20 |
| '555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points) 21 |
| MCQs21 |
| Session 5: Self Harm and Suicide22 |
| Journal theme: Survey on Suicide and Self-harm22 |
| Learning Objectives |
| Expert Led Session22 |
| Case Presentation |

| | Journal Club Presentation | 22 |
|---|---|------|
| | '555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points) | 23 |
| | MCQs | 23 |
| | Session 6: Anxiety Disorders-1 | 24 |
| | Journal theme: Cohort studies on Anxiety Disorders | |
| | | |
| | Learning Objectives | 24 |
| | Expert Led Session | 24 |
| | Case Presentation | 24 |
| | Journal Club Presentation | 25 |
| | '555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points) | 25 |
| | MCQs | 25 |
| | CAMHS | 27 |
| | Session 1: Assessment in child and Adolescent Psychiatry | |
| | Learning Objectives | . 27 |
| | Curriculum links | |
| | Expert Led Session | 27 |
| | Case Presentation | 27 |
| | Journal Club Presentation | .27 |
| | 555 Topics | 28 |
| | MCQs | 28 |
| | Additional Resources/Reading Materials | 31 |
| S | Session 2: Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) | 33 |
| | Learning Objectives | .33 |
| | Curriculum links | 33 |
| | Expert Led Session | 33 |
| | Case Presentation | 33 |
| | Journal Club Presentation | 33 |
| | 555 Topics | 34 |
| | MCQs | 34 |
| | Additional Resources/Reading Materials | 37 |

| Old Age | |
|--|----|
| Session 1: Cognition | |
| Learning Objectives | |
| Curriculum Links | |
| Expert Led Session | |
| Case Presentation | |
| Journal Club Presentation | |
| '555' Topic (5 slides with no more than 5 bullet points per slide) | |
| MCQs | 40 |
| Additional Resources / Reading Material | |
| Session 2: Alzheimer's Disease | 44 |
| Learning Objectives | |
| Curriculum Links | |
| Expert Led Session | |
| Case Presentation | |
| Journal Club Presentation | |
| '555' Topic (5 slides with no more than 5 bullet points per slide) | |
| MCQs | |
| Additional Resources / Reading Materials | |
| MCQ answers | 48 |
| Cognition | |
| Alzheimer's | |
| Across the Ages | |
| Session 1: Psychosis Across the Ages | |
| Learning Objectives | |
| Curiculum links | 49 |
| Extended Expert Led Session (incorporating case discussion) | 50 |

| Journal Club articles (if used) | 50 |
|---|----|
| "555" Topics (if used) | 50 |
| MCQ's | 51 |
| Additional resources / Reading Materials | 52 |
| FORENSIC | 53 |
| Session 1: Psychiatry and the Criminal Justice System | 53 |
| Learning Objectives | 53 |
| Curriculum Links | 53 |
| Expert Led Session | 53 |
| Case Presentation | 53 |
| Journal Club Presentation | 53 |
| '555' Topic (5 slides with no more than 5 bullet points) | |
| MCQs | |
| Additional Resources / Reading Materials | |
| ID | |
| Session 1 | |
| Learning Objectives | 58 |
| Curriculum Links | 58 |
| Expert Led Session | 58 |
| Case Presentation | 58 |
| Journal Club Presentation | |
| '555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points) | 58 |
| MCQs | 59 |
| Additional Resources / Reading Materials | 60 |
| Psychotherapy | 61 |
| Session 1: Referring to Psychotherapy Services | 61 |
| Learning Objectives | 61 |
| Curriculum Links | 61 |

| Expert Led Session | 61 |
|---|----|
| Case Presentation | 61 |
| Journal Club Presentation | 61 |
| 555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points) | 62 |
| MCQs | 62 |
| Additional Resources / Reading Materials | 63 |
| Substance Misuse | 64 |
| Session 1: Diagnosis and Treatment for People with Alcohol Problems | 64 |
| Learning Objectives | 64 |
| Curriculum Links | 64 |
| Expert Led Session | 64 |
| Case Presentation | 64 |
| Journal Club Presentation | 65 |
| '555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points) | 65 |
| MCQs | 65 |
| MCQ Answers | 68 |
| Additional Resources / Reading Materials | 68 |

Brief guidelines for case conference presentation

The objectives of case conference are:

- 1) To provide a forum to discuss complex/interesting cases in a learning atmosphere.
- 2) To develop your ability to present cases in a concise and logical manner.
- 3) To develop your presentation skills.

Guidelines for presenters:

1. Please use PowerPoint for the presentation (or if you are using other tools make sure that they are compatible with your local IT facilities).

2. You have to present a case that is relevant to the theme of the day on which you are presenting.

3. Please meet with your educational/clinical supervisor at least 4-6 weeks prior to the presentation to identify an appropriate case to present. If there is no suitable case in the team that you work in, you may have to approach other teams/consultants to identify a case.

4. Cases can be chosen for their atypical presentation, diagnosis, complexity or for exploring management options.

5. It would be helpful if you can identify specific clinical questions that would you would like to be discussed/answered at the end of the presentation.

6. We would recommend the following structure for the presentation:

- Introduction (include reasons for choosing the case)
- Circumstances leading to admission (if appropriate)
- History of presenting complaint
- Past Psychiatric history
- Medical History/ current medication
- Personal/family History
- Alcohol/Illicit drugs history
- Forensic history
- Premorbid personality
- Social circumstances
- Mental state examination
- Investigations
- Progress since admission (if appropriate)
- A slide with questions that you would you like to be discussed

- Discussion on differential diagnosis including reasons for and against them.
- Management / treatment

7. The structure of the presentation can vary as long it is logical and concise. Please build into the presentation some natural points to stop and discuss the case.

8. Important: Please ask a senior member of your team who knows the case to attend on the day you are presenting.

Brief guidelines for journal club presentation

The objectives of journal club presentation are:

- 1) To learn to perform a structured critical appraisal of a study.
- 2) To learn to make appropriate use of evidence in making decisions about the care of your patients.
- 3) To prepare for the MRCPsych exams.
- 4) To develop your presentation skills.

Guidelines for presenters:

- 1. Please use PowerPoint for the presentation (or if you are using other tools make sure that they are compatible with your local IT facilities).
- 2. Please select one of the 3 papers listed for the week from the School of Psychiatry handbook to present.
- 3. Email the paper to your local co-ordinator at least a week before the presentation so that it can be circulated in time.
- 4. As the presenter you are expected to both present the paper and critically review it.

5. We would recommend the following structure for the presentation: Background to study, methods, analysis, results, conclusions, critical appraisal of the study and implications for clinical practice

- 6. The most important part of the presentation is the critical appraisal. This should include aspects such as:
 - Purpose of the study
 - Type of study
 - Subject selection and any bias

- Power calculation (could the study ever answer the question posed)
- Appropriateness of statistical tests used
- Use of relevant outcomes
- Implications of findings
- Applications of findings/conclusions in your area
- Directions for further research

7. Use standardized critical appraisal tools.

8. Please discuss the paper and the presentation with your educational/clinical supervisor prior to the presentation.

Syllabus Links

Syllabus for MRCPsych

Syllabus for MRCPsych critical review

MRCPsych Paper A - The Scientific and theoretical basis of Psychiatry

MRCPsych Paper B - Critical review and the clinical topics in Psychiatry

MRCPsych CASC

| Curriculum Mapping | | | | |
|--------------------|--------------------------------------|------------|----|--------------|
| Section | Торіс | Covered by | | |
| | | LEP | AP | LR |
| 7.1 | Disorders in adulthood | | | |
| 7.1.1 | Unipolar depression | ~ | | ✓ |
| 7.1.2 | Bipolar depression | ~ | | ✓ |
| 7.1.3 | Schizophrenia | ~ | | ✓ |
| 7.1.4 | Anxiety disorders | ~ | | ✓ |
| 7.1.5 | OCD | ~ | | ✓ |
| 7.1.6 | Hypochondriasis | | ~ | \checkmark |
| 7.1.7 | Somatization disorder | | ~ | \checkmark |
| 7.1.8 | Dissociative disorders | | ~ | \checkmark |
| 7.1.9 | Personality disorders | ~ | | \checkmark |
| 7.1.10 | Organic psychoses | ~ | | \checkmark |
| 7.1.11 | Other psychiatric disorders | ~ | | \checkmark |
| 7.2 | Perinatal Psychiatry | | ~ | \checkmark |
| 7.3 | General Hospital Psychiatry | | ~ | \checkmark |
| 7.4 | Emergency Psychiatry* | | ~ | \checkmark |
| 7.5 | Eating Disorders | | | |
| 7.5.1 | Anorexia nervosa | | ~ | \checkmark |
| 7.5.2 | Bulimia nervosa | | ~ | \checkmark |
| 7.6 | Psycho-sexual disorders | | | |
| 7.6.1 | Non-organic sexual dysfunction, etc. | | ~ | \checkmark |
| 7.6.2 | Gender Identity Disorders | | ~ | \checkmark |
| - | Mental Health Act 1983 | ✓ | | ✓ |

Key- LEP – Local Education Programme;

AP- Academic Programme

LR – Learning Resources

| Links to Critical Appraisal Checklists | | |
|--|-----------------------------|--|
| Study Checklists | | |
| | 1. <u>CONSORT</u> Checklist | |
| Randomized Controlled Trial | 2. <u>SIGN</u> Checklist | |
| | 3. CASP Checklist | |
| Case-control Study | 1. <u>SIGN</u> Checklist | |
| | 2. <u>CASP</u> Checklist | |
| Cohort Study | 1. <u>SIGN</u> Checklist | |
| | 2. <u>CASP</u> Checklist | |
| | 1. PRISMA statement | |
| Meta-analysis & Systematic Review | 2. <u>SIGN</u> Checklist | |
| | 3. CASP Checklist | |
| Qualitative study | 1. CASP Checklist | |
| Economic study | 1. <u>SIGN</u> Checklist | |
| | 2. <u>CASP</u> Checklist | |
| Diagnostic study | 1. <u>SIGN</u> Checklist | |
| | 2. <u>CASP</u> Checklist | |

General Adult Semester 1

Session 1: Psychosis-1 Journal theme: Randomised Controlled trials on Psychosis Learning Objectives

- To develop an understanding of the clinical presentation of psychotic illnesses.
- To develop an understanding of aetiological theories and epidemiology of Schizophrenia.
- To develop an understanding of possible complications of antipsychotic medication.
- To develop an understanding of Randomised Controlled trials and develop skills for critically appraising RCTs.

Expert Led Session

Schizophrenia-aetiological theories and epidemiology

Case Presentation

• A case of Schizophrenia (any subtype) /Schizoaffective disorder / Delusional disorder / Acute and transient psychotic disorder / First-episode psychosis/ Schizotypal disorder.

Journal Club Presentation

- Lieberman JA, Stroup TS, McEvoy JP, Swartz MS, Rosenheck RA, Perkins, DO, Keefe RS, Davis SM, Davis CE, Lebowitz BD, Severe J, Hsiao JK (2005) <u>Clinical Antipsychotic Trials of Intervention</u> <u>Effectiveness Investigators Effectiveness (CATIE) of antipsychotic drugs in patients with chronic</u> <u>schizophrenia</u>. N Engl J Med. 353(12):1209-1223.
- Haddock G, Barrowclough C, Shaw JJ, Dunn G, Novaco RW, Tarrier N (2009) <u>Cognitive</u> <u>behavioural therapy v. social activity therapy for people with psychosis and a history of violence:</u> <u>randomised controlled trial</u>. BJPsych 194:152-157.
- Jones PB, Barnes TRE, Davies L, Dunn G, Lloyd H, Hayhurst KP, et al. (2006) <u>A randomized</u> controlled trial of effect on quality of life of second generation versus first generation antipsychotic <u>drugs in schizophrenia</u>. Arch Gen Psychiatry 63:1079–1087.

'555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

Please select one topic:

Neuroleptic malignant syndrome

- Management of hyperprolactinaemia for patients on antipsychotics
- Management of QTc prolongation for patients on antipsychotics

Statistics '555' Topic

CONSORT Checklist for RCT's

MCQs

1. A long duration of untreated psychosis is strongly associated with which of the following:

A. Ethnicity

B. Insidious onset

C. Level of Education

D. Living alone

E. Rural residence

- 2. What is the most likely long-term effect of delirium:
- A. Accelerated decline in cognition and function
- B. Better physical outcomes in future
- C. Increased chance of late-onset psychosis
- D. Increased hospital readmission rates
- E. Increased likelihood of future episodes of delirium

3. Which of the following depot antipsychotics has a mandatory requirement of observing the patient for at least 3 hours after administration in a hospital setting:

A. Fluphenazine decanoate

B. Olanzapine embonate

C. Paliperidone palmitate

- D. Pipothiazine palmitate
- E. Aripiprazole maintena
- 4. Which of the following statements is FALSE about ICD-10 criteria of Schizophrenia:
- A. A. Symptoms must be present for at least 6 months
- B. Neologism is included in the symptoms
- C. Organic brain disorder, alcohol and drug related intoxication, dependence or withdrawal are exclusion criteria

D. One of the criteria is: persistent hallucinations in any modality, when accompanied by delusions (which may be fleeting or half-formed) without clear affective content, or when accompanied by persistent over-valued ideas.

5. Which of the following antipsychotic has least effect on QTc interval:

A. Aripiprazole

- B. Quetiapine
- C. Risperidone
- D. Sulpiride
- E. Olanzapine

Session 2: Depression-1

Journal theme: Meta-analysis and Systematic review on Depression

Learning Objectives

- To develop an understanding of the clinical presentation of Depression.
- To develop an understanding of aetiological theories and epidemiology of Depression.
- To develop an understanding of possible complications of antidepressant medications.
- To develop an understanding of Meta-analysis and Systematic review and develop skills for critically appraising Meta-analysis and Systematic review.

Expert Led Session

• Depression - aetiological theories and epidemiology

Case Presentation

 A case of major depressive disorder / severe depression with psychotic symptoms / dysthymia / recurrent depressive disorder

Journal Club Presentation

Please select one of the following papers:

- Geddes, JR, Carney, SM, Davies, C, Furukawa, TA, Kupfer, DJ, Frank, E, Goodwin, GM. (2003) <u>Relapse prevention with antidepressant drug treatment in depressive disorders: a systematic</u> <u>review</u>. Lancet 361: 653–661.
- Turner P, Kantaria R, Young AH (2014). A systematic review and meta-analysis of the evidence base for add-on treatment for patients with major depressive disorder who have not responded to antidepressant treatment: a European perspective. J Psychopharmacol. 28(2):85-98.
- UK ECT Review group (2003). Efficacy and safety of electroconvulsive therapy in depressive disorders: a systematic review and meta-analysis, Lancet 361:799-808.

'555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

Please select one topic:

- Agitated, retarded and atypical depression brief summary
- Antidepressant discontinuation symptoms
- Antidepressants and sexual dysfunction

| Statistics '555' Topic |
|---|
| Systematic review, meta-analysis and forest plot |
| |
| |
| MCQs |
| 1. Which of the following is not a well-recognised symptom of depressive illness: |
| A. Ruminations of guilt |
| B. Thought broadcast |
| C. Irritability |
| D. Thoughts of worthlessness |
| E. Hypersomnia |
| |
| 2. David has chronic back pain and depression that is not responding to SSRI antidepressants. Which one |
| of the following is the best antidepressant of choice in this situation? |
| A. Vortioxetine |
| B. Trazodone |
| C. Venlafaxine |
| D. Bupropion |
| E. Amitriptyline |
| 3. Which of the following factors is NOT associated with risk of repetition of attempted suicide? |
| A. No previous psychiatric treatment |
| B. Alcohol or drug abuse |
| C. Previous attempts at self-harm |
| D. Personality disorder |
| E. Criminal record |
| |
| 4. Which of the following medications has RCT evidence for reduction of suicide rate? |
| A. Citalopram |
| B. Imipramine |
| C. Aripiprazole |
| D. Bupropion |
| E. Lithium carbonate |

5. Which ONE of the antidepressants below is safest to use in an individual who becomes depressed following a myocardial infarction, as concluded from the SADHART trial?

- A. Fluoxetine
- B. Mirtazapine
- C. Amitriptyline
- D. Sertraline
- E. Citalopram

Session 3: Bipolar Disorder-1 Journal theme: Case-control studies on Bipolar Learning Objectives

- To develop an understanding of the clinical presentation of Bipolar disorder.
- To develop an understanding of aetiological theories and epidemiology of Bipolar disorder.
- To develop an understanding of possible complications of mood-stabilizer medications.
- To develop an understanding of case-control studies and develop skills for critically appraising casecontrol studies.

Expert Led Session

Bipolar affective disorder- aetiological theories and epidemiology

Case Presentation

• A case of type I bipolar disorder / type II bipolar disorder / cyclothymia / bipolar disorder with psychotic symptoms / rapid cycling bipolar disorder/ unipolar mania.

Journal Club Presentation

Please select one of the following papers:

- Guo JJ, Keck PE Jr, Corey-Lisle PK, Li H, Jiang D, Jang R, L'Italien GJ (2006) <u>Risk of diabetes</u> mellitus associated with atypical antipsychotic use among patients with bipolar disorder: A retrospective, population-based, case-control study. The Journal of Clinical Psychiatry 67(7):1055-1061.
- Cavanagh JTO, Van Beck M, Muir W, Blackwood DHR. (2002) <u>Case—control study of</u> <u>neurocognitive function in euthymic patients with bipolar disorder: an association with mania</u>. BJPsych 180:320-326.
- Alberta U, Coria D, Agugliaa A, Barbaroa F, Lanfrancob F et al. (2013). Lithium-associated hyperparathyroidism and hypercalcaemia: A case-control cross-sectional study; 151 (2); 786–79. doi:10.1016/j.jad.2013.06.046

'555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

Please select one topic:

- Mixed Affective states, Rapid cycling disorder brief overview
- Atypical antipsychotics as mood stabilizers a rough guide
- Pharmacological prophylaxis in Bipolar Disorder

Statistics '555' Topic

Cohort studies and case control studies

MCQs

1. The following statements about bipolar disorder are true except :

A. The lifetime risk of bipolar disorder lies between 0.3% and 1.5%.

B. The prevalence in men and woman is the same.

C. Majority of bipolar patients, particularly women, begin with a manic episode.

D. The age of onset is earlier in bipolar disorder than in major depressive disorder.

E. An onset over the age of 60 is more likely to be associated with organic brain disease.

2. Which of the following most closely reflects the risk of Bipolar Disorder in a first degree relative of an affected proband?

- A. 0.3-1.0%
- B. 1-2%
- C. 5-10%.
- D. 15%
- E. 20%

3. 48 year old woman is stable stabilised on Lithium Carbonate. She has developed hypertension. Which of the following antihypertensive has the least potential for interaction with Lithium?

- A. Losartan
- B. Frusemide
- C. Ramipril
- D. Atenolol
- E. Bendroflumethazide

4. Factors associated with a change of polarity from unipolar to bipolar include all except:

- A. Hypersomnia and psychomotor retardation.
- B. Absence of psychotic features.
- C. Younger age of onset.

D. Family history of bipolar disorder.

E. Antidepressant induced hypomania

5. Select one incorrect statement regarding bipolar depression in comparison with unipolar depression.

- A. Slower in onset
- B. More frequent
- C. More severe and shorter.
- D. Cause greater socio-economic burden
- E. More likely to be associated with psychotic symptoms

Session 4: Mental Health Act Journal theme: Studies on MHA - Any method Learning Objectives

• To develop an understanding of the aspects of the Mental Health Act relevant to general adult psychiatry (especially Sections 2, 3, 4, 5(2), 5(4), 136 and Supervised Community Treatment).

Expert Led Session

• Salient points – Sections 2,3,4, 5(2), 5(4), 135, 136

Case Presentation

• A case focusing on aspects of MHA including Section 5(2), Section 136, Section 2 & 3 and Supervised Community Treatment (CTO).

Journal Club Presentation

Please select one of the following topics:

- Burns T, Rugkåsa J, Molodynski A, Dawson J, Yeeles K et al. (2013). Community treatment orders for patients with psychosis (OCTET): a randomised controlled trial. The Lancet; 381 (9878), 1627–1633. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(13)60107-5
- Owen GS, Szmukler G, Richardson G, David AS, Raymont V, Freyenhagen F, Martin W, Hotopf M (2013) Decision-making capacity and medical in-patients: cross-sectional, comparative study. BJPsych, 2013 (6) 461-467.
- Brown PF, Tulloch AD, Mackenzie C, Owen GS, Szmukler G, Hotopf M. (2013). Assessments of mental capacity in psychiatric inpatients: a retrospective cohort study.

BMC Psychiatry; 13:115. **DOI:** 10.1186/1471-244X-13-115. http://bmcpsychiatry.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/1471-244X-13-115

'555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

Please select one topic:

- Independent Mental Health Advocates (IMHAs) Duties and Powers
- Nearest relatives meaning, identification, powers and displacement
- Consent to treatment T2,T3,T4,T6, CTO11 and CTO12

Statistics '555' Topic

• Formulating research questions (PECO) and common literature search databases with what they include (e.g EMBASE, CINAHL, Psychinfo, Pubmed)

MCQs

- 1. To prevent deprivation of liberty occurring:
- A. There is no requirement to consider what restrictions are placed before entry into a care home
- B. Involvement of advocacy services should be avoided
- C. It is vital to consider all aspects of the care plan
- D. There is no need to involve carers or relatives in planning care

2. The deprivation of liberty safeguards:

- A. Were introduced to prevent deprivation of liberty in a person's own home
- B. Facilitate protection of people other than the relevant person from harm
- C. A primary care trust may be responsible for providing the appropriate standard authorisation
- D. The supervisory body issues an urgent deprivation of liberty authorisation.

3. The 2007 amendments to the Mental Health Act abolished the following classifications:

- A. Mental illness
- B. Psychopathic disorder
- C. Mental impairment
- D. Severe mental impairment
- E. All of the above.

4. Under the amended Act, a patient can be detained if the following conditions for treatment are met:

- A. Treatment is legal
- B. Treatment is offered by a psychiatrist

- C. Treatment is available and appropriate
- D. Treatment has an effect on risk
- E. Treatment will cure the mental disorder

5. The provision in the amended Act that helps to uphold the human rights of a patient with personality disorder is:

A. Ease of discharge

- B. Provision of statutory advocacy service
- C. Right to refuse treatment if the patient possesses capacity
- D. Regular contact with 'nearest relative'
- E. More frequent tribunal hearings

Session 5: Self Harm and Suicide Journal theme: Survey on Suicide and Self-harm Learning Objectives

- To develop an understanding of various facets of self-harm and suicide (aetiology, epidemiology, neurobiology, genetics, clinical presentation, risk assessment) and their management (pharmacological, psychological, social).
- To develop an understanding of surveys and develop skills for critically appraising surveys.

Expert Led Session

• Suicide and self-harm - aetiological theories and epidemiology

Case Presentation

A case of presentation of overdose to A&E / repeated self-harm / suicide attempt

Journal Club Presentation

Please select one of the following topics:

 Bebbington PE, Minota S, Cooper C, Dennis M, Meltzer H, Jenkins, R, Brugha T (2010). <u>Suicidal</u> ideation, self-harm and attempted suicide: Results from the British psychiatric morbidity <u>survey 2000</u>. European Psychiatry 25(7):427-431

- Bertolote JM, Fleischmann A, De Leo D, Bolhari J, Botega N, De Silva D, Tran Thi Thanh H, Phillips M, Schlebusch L, Värnik A, Vijayakumar L, Wasserman D. (2005). <u>Suicide attempts, plans, and ideation in culturally diverse sites: the WHO SUPRE-MISS community survey</u>. Psychol Med. 35(10):1457-65.
- Zalsman G et al(2016). <u>Suicide prevention strategies revisted: 10 year Systematic review. The</u> <u>Lancet Psychiatry</u>. Vol 3. Issue 7. July 2016 Pages 646-6590

'555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

- Factors associated with suicide risk and rates of suicides in Schizophrenia, Bipolar disorder and depressive disorder.
- Substance misuse and suicide risk
- Emotionally unstable personality disorder and risk of suicide

Statistics '555' Topic

. Types of data (qualitative, quantitative etc)

MCQs

- 1. What is the single strongest predictor of completed suicide?
- A. Mental illness
- B. Previous self-harm
- C. Recent bereavement
- D. Having a neurodegenerative physical illness
- E. Family history of suicide

2. A patient is refusing life-saving treatment for severe blood loss after cutting her wrists. Under the law in England and Wales, whose responsibility is it to assess capacity to make a decision to refuse treatment?

- A. A consultant psychiatrist
- B. A clinical psychologist
- C. Any psychiatrist who is approved under Section 12(2) of the Mental Health Act
- D. The clinician proposing the treatment
- E. The duty AMHP (Approved Mental Health Professional)
- 3. Which of the following are the TWO periods of highest risk of suicide? (please pick two)
- A. As an inpatient, during the first week of admission
- B. At home, during the first week following discharge
- C. During the last week of admission when discharge is imminent

D. At home, after the first week following discharge has passed and there is less support

E. In the emergency department, while waiting for an inpatient bed

4. There is RCT evidence for reduction in suicide risk with which of the following medications? (please pick two)

- A. Aripiprazole
- B. Sodium valproate
- C. Clozapine
- D. Topiramate
- E. Lithium.

5. What is the most current estimate of lifetime risk of suicide for individuals with schizophrenia?

- A. 1%
- B. 2%
- C. 5%
- D. 10%
- E. 15%

Session 6: Anxiety Disorders-1 Journal theme: Cohort studies on Anxiety Disorders

Learning Objectives

- To develop an understanding of anxiety disorders* (aetiology, epidemiology, natural history, neurobiology, genetics, diagnostic criteria, classification, psychopathology, clinical presentation, assessment, risks) and its management (pharmacological, psychological, social). [* Other than OCD and PTSD]
- To develop an understanding of cohort studies and develop skills for critically appraising cohort studies.

Expert Led Session

GAD and panic disorder - aetiological theories and epidemiology

Case Presentation

A case of generalised anxiety disorder/ panic attacks/ panic disorder/ agoraphobia/ social phobia/ specific phobias

Journal Club Presentation

Please select one of the following papers:

- Moffitt TE, Harrington H, Caspi A, Kim-Cohen J, Goldberg, D, Gregory AM, Poulton, R (2007) <u>Depression and generalized anxiety disorder: cumulative and sequential comorbidity in a birth</u> <u>cohort followed prospectively to age 32 years</u>. Arch Gen Psychiatry 64(6):651-660.
- Vogelzangs N, Beekman ATF, Jonge P, Penninx B (2013) Anxiety disorders and inflammation in a large adult cohort. Transl Psychiatry. 2013 Apr; 3(4): e249. doi: 10.1038/tp.2013.27
- Watkins LL, Koch GG, Sherwood A, Blumenthal JA, Davidson JRT, et al. (2013). Association of Anxiety and Depression with All-Cause Mortality in Individuals with Coronary Heart Disease. J Am Heart Assoc; 2: e000068. Doi: 10.1161/JAHA.112.000068.

'555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

Please select one topic:

- Dissociative disorders brief overview
- Acute stress reaction and Adjustment disorders
- Pharmacological treatment of Insomnia

Statistics '555' Topic

Recruitment methods

MCQs

- 1. Which one of below is not true of body dysmorphic disorder (BDD):
- A. First described by Morselli
- B. DSM-IV classifies BDD as a somatoform disorder
- C. ICD-10 classifies BDD under hypochondriacal disorder
- D. Severe BDD is usually treated with SSRI and CBT as first line
- E. Commonly associated with morbid jealousy.

2. All of the following anxiety disorders are more common in females, except:

- A. Agoraphobia
- B. Social phobia
- C. Panic disorder
- D. Generalised anxiety disorder
- E. None of the above

3. All of the below are poor prognostic factors for OCD, except:

A. Early onset

B. Male

C. No compulsions

- D. Family history of OCD
- E. Longer duration

4. Which of the following is recommended by NICE as first line treatment for PTSD?

A. SSRI antidepressants

B. Counselling

- C. Eye Movement Desensitization and Reprocessing
- D. Combination of CBT and SSRI antidepressant
- E. Quetiapine
- 5. Which of the following statement is FALSE?
- A. Quetiapine has clear RCT evidence for efficacy in Generalised anxiety disorder.
- B. Escitalopram is licenced for treatment of OCD
- C. Treatment duration of at least 3 months is usually recommended for treatment of OCD
- D. Antipsychotics should not routine be combined with antidepressants for treatment of anxiety disorders
- E. Paroxetine, Escitalopram and Citalopram are all licenced for treatment of panic disorder

CAMHS

Session 1: Assessment of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry

Learning Objectives

Undertake assessments of children and young people; to communicate effectively with children, young people and their families across the age range; to take a developmental history; to formulate and prepare a plan and identify appropriate interventions.

Describe how the emphasis of assessments in CAMHS may be different to that in Adult Mental Health

Curriculum Links

Child Psychiatry:

10.1 10.2 10.3 10.4 10.5 10.6

Expert Led Session

This should include consideration of room setting e.g. with appropriate toys and other developmentally appropriate materials/approaches, the differences and similarities between adult and child psychiatry, pointers on taking a developmental history, ICD 11, DSM 5, bio-psychosocial formulation and risk assessment. Should also consider that some trainee's may have limited experience with young children but have transferrable skills in assessment.

Case Presentation

- To highlight multi-disciplinary/multiagency nature of work (should include discussion of school observation/assessment)
- To highlight bio-psychosocial formulation
- Those trainees who are not currently in a CAMHS post should contact their local CAMHS team for the suitable case for presentation.

Journal Club Presentation

Review article: Assessing anxiety disorders in children and adolescents Susan H. Spence Journal of Child Psychology and Psychiatry, 2017, 23:3,266-282, November 2017. https://doi.org/10.1111/camh.12251

Useful overview of different methods of assessment using anxiety as an example

Practitioner Review: Anxiety disorders in children and young people – assessment and treatment Cathy Creswell ,Polly Waite &Jennie Hudson Journal of Child Psychology and Psychiatry, 2020, 61:6,628-643, January 2020: https://doi.org/10.1111/jcpp.13186 With further exploration of assessment and treatment

 The Clinical Application of the Biopsychosocial Model in Mental Health: A Research Critique: Álvarez, AS; Pagani, M; Meucci, P (2012) American Journal of Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation, 2012, 91:13, S173–S180

'555' Topics (1 slide on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

- Risk assessment domains and formulation
- Assessment of a young person after an episode of self-harm young people
- Local Safeguarding processes and organisational structures

MCQs

- 1. Patient should routinely have a neurological examination if they present with all except:
- A. History of an episode of fainting
- B. History of seizures
- C. Developmental delay
- D. Dysmorphic features
- E. Abnormal gait

- 2. A physical risk assessment for patients with Anorexia Nervosa should include all except:
- A. Assessment of BMI and weight
- B. Assessment of heart rate
- C. Assessment of temperature
- D. Assessment of hydration status
- E. Body fat % measurement

3. During an assessment of a 14 year old patient with low mood in primary care, which of the following would prompt you to refer to specialist CAMHS:

- A. Mild depressive episode in those who have not responded to interventions after 2-3 months
- B. Active suicidal plans
- C. Referral requested by the young person
- D. Moderate to severe depressive episode.
- E. All of the above
- 4. Assessment of ADHD commonly include all except:
- A. Baseline liver function tests (blood tests)
- B. School observations
- C. History from parents/carers
- D. Questionnaire assessment
- E. History from patient

5. Mental state examination of a 15 year old patient should include all the following except:

- A. Assessment of appearance and behaviour
- B. Family history
- C. Assessment of speech
- D. Assessment of insight
- E. Assessment of cognition

- 6. The multi axial diagnostic formulation scheme of ICD 10 include:
- A. Axis III: psychiatric disorder
- B. Axis II: medical conditions
- C. Axis IV: adaptive functioning
- D. Axis I: psychiatric disorder
- E. Axis VI: medical conditions
- 7. An assessment of a 3 year old with suspected Autistic Spectrum Disorder must include:
- A. A home visit
- B. A detailed mental state examination
- C. Observation of the child interacting with others
- D. All of the above A-C
- E. None of the above A-C
- 8. CAMHS assessments in patients with speech delay should routinely include all except:
- A. Family tree (genogram)
- B. Family history of ASD
- C. Developmental history
- D. Details of whether the patient had the combined MMR vaccine
- E. Medical history
- 9. The presence of a disorder can be explained in terms of all except:
- A. Predisposing factors
- B. Precipitating factors
- C. Perpetuating factors
- D. Petulant factors
- E. Protective factors

10. In regards to initial CAMHS assessment of children under 5 with speech delay:

A. You should not see them without the presence of their parent/carer in the room

B. You should aim to get the child sat down in a chair for the majority of the assessment

C. You should observe them playing and play too if appropriate

D. You should avoid difficult topics

E. You should use more directed questioning

Additional Resources / Reading Materials

1. Practice Parameters for the Psychiatric Assessment of Children and Adolescents. J. Am. Acad. Child Ado/esc. Psychiatry. 1997,31:1386-1402. J. Am. Acad. Child Ado/esc. Psychiatry. 1997.36(10 Supplement):45-20S. <u>https://www.jaacap.org/article/S0890-8567(09)62591-0/fulltext</u>

2. And for toddlers (1997) https://www.jaacap.org/article/S0890-8567(09)62592-2/fulltext

3. Practice Parameter for the Assessment of the Family. J. Am. Acad. Child Adolesc. Psychiatry, 2007;46(7):922Y937 <u>https://www.jaacap.org/article/S0890-8567(09)62183-3/fulltext</u>

4. Wolpert, M., Ford, T., Trustam, E., Law, D., Deighton, J., Flannery, H., and Fugard R. J. B. (2012) Patient-reported outcomes in child and adolescent mental health services (CAMHS): Use of idiographic and standardized measures, Journal of Mental Health, 21:2, 165-173

5. H all, C.L., Moldavsky, M., Baldwin, L. *et al.* The use of routine outcome measures in two child and adolescent mental health services: a completed audit cycle. *BMC Psychiatry* **13**, 270 (2013). <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/1471-244X-13-270</u>

6. Drawing helps children to talk about their presenting problems during a mental health assessment Junie Woolford et al Clinical Child Psychology and Psychiatry, vol. 20, 1: pp. 68-83., July, 2013

Books

- Child and Adolescent Psychiatry. <u>Robert Goodman</u> and <u>Stephen Scott</u>. Third Edition (2012)
- Child and Adolescent Psychiatry: A Developmental Approach. 4th ed. Jeremy Turk, Philip Graham, Frank C Verhulst (2007)
- Clinical topics in Child and adolescent psychiatry Sarah Huline-Dickens (2014)

E-Learning

RCPsych TRon Modules

1. Including:

Conceptualising and studying development

The development of temperament, language and cerebral functions modules

Adolescence and sexual development

Family relationships

2. The neurological examination

Not specific to children but generally useful in assessment. In this podcast Professor Adam Zeman, Professor of Cognitive and Behavioural Neurology at the University of Exeter Medical School, explains to Dr Raj Persaud how to conduct a neurological examination.

http://www.psychiatrycpd.org/default.aspx?page=20900

Journal Articles

- The Child and Adolescent Psychiatric Assessment (CAPA).
 Angold A, Prendergast M, Cox A, Harrington R, Simonoff E, Rutter M. Psychol Med. 1995 Jul;25(4):739-53.
- Measurement Issues: Neuropsychological assessment with children and adolescents; unlocking the mysticism, methods and measures with the help of Tom Swift: James Tonks Phil J. Yates Huw W. Williams Ian Frampton Alan Slater Child and Adolescent Mental Health Volume 19 (2), November 2013

https://acamh.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/camh.12043

Session 2: Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD)

Learning Objectives

 Describe signs, symptoms and differential diagnosis of Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder, and treatment options.

Curriculum Links

ADHD:

 $10.1 \quad 10.2 \quad 10.3 \quad 10.6 \quad 10.7 \quad 10.8.3.1 \quad 10.8.3.2 \quad 10.8.3.3 \quad 10.8.3.4 \quad 10.8.3.5$

Expert Led Session

This should consider aspects of assessment, formulation, evidence base, NICE guidelines of assessment and intervention, differential diagnosis, co-morbidities, consequences of nontreatment and impact on substance misuse.

Case Presentation

 To highlight points in assessment, use of questionnaires, use of Quantified behavioural (Qb) test, multisource information gathering, differential diagnoses and formulation.

Journal Club Presentation

- Treatment of Children With Attention-Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) and Irritability: Results From the Multimodal Treatment Study of Children With ADHD (MTA) Lorena Fernandez de la Cruz, PhD, Emily Simonoff, MD, James J. McGough, MD, Jeffrey M. Halperin, PhD, L. Eugene Arnold, MD, MEd, Argyris Stringaris, MD, PhD, MRCPsych J Am Acad Child Adolesc Psychiatry 2015;54(1):62–70.
- Long-Term Outcomes of ADHD: Academic Achievement and Performance L. Eugene Arnold1, Paul Hodgkins2,3, Jennifer Kahle4, Manisha Madhoo5, and Geoff Kewley6. Journal of Attention Disorders 1–13 © 2015 SAGE Publications
- Study of user experience of an objective test (QbTest) to aid ADHD assessment and medication management: a multi-methods approach

Charlotte L. Hall, Althea Z. Valentine, Gemma M. Walker, Harriet M. Ball, Heather Cogger, David Daley, Madeleine J. Groom, Kapil Sayal and Chris Hollis

BMC PsychiatryBMC series – open, inclusive and trusted201717:66 https://doi.org/10.1186/s12888-017-1222-5© The Author(s). 2017

'555' Topics (1 slide on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

- Medical treatment in ADHD, types of medication, pharmacokinetics, pharmacodynamics, side effect profile.
- Formal assessment tools in ADHD assessment; pros and cons.
- NICE Guidelines for ADHD.

MCQs

1. A four year old boy is brought to clinic with his parents. They report that he is inattentive at school, will not sit and play with his siblings at home and on one occasion let go of his mother's hand whilst shopping and ran out into the road. Following assessment and diagnosis, what would your initial management step be?

- A. Refer patient for individualised CBT
- B. Refer family for Family Therapy
- C. Refer family to parent training and education sessions
- D. Commence 5mg methylphenidate daily, titrating up weekly until improvement is seen
- E. None of the above

3. The parents of a 5 year old girl recently diagnosed with ADHD have cancelled their second group parent training and education session. They tell you this is because their 11 year old son has learning disabilities and is wheelchair bound. They have no extended family or close friends to help with child care arrangements on the days required. What would you advise?

- A. Offer to commence medication for the patient as they will not be able to attend the parent training and education sessions
- B. Offer to hold individualised parent training and education sessions on a day that would better suit them
- C. Discharge the family from your case load as they have missed two consecutive appointments
- D. Ask them to contact children and family services to arrange child care whilst they attend the training sessions
- E. None of the above

4. You have assessed a 7 year old boy with suspected ADHD in clinic. You would like to get further information about his behaviour in school from his teachers. Which of the following regarding consent to discuss the case with school is correct?

A. You will need to document that you have obtained consent from the patient's parents or carers before you contact the school for information

B. You will need to document that you have obtained consent from the patient before you contact school for information

C. You don't need consent to request information with school

D. You don't need consent to request information from school as long as you don't discuss treatment with them

E. You will need verbal consent from the patient's parents or carers before you contact the school for information

5. Following assessment of an 8 year old boy, you diagnose severe ADHD with severe impairment of functioning in both social and academic domains. What would be your initial step in management?

- A. Refer family to Family Therapy
- B. Refer patient for CBT
- C. Referfamily to parent training and education
- D. Commence the patient on medication
- E. None of the above

6. You wish to complete a pre-drug treatment assessment on a 7 year old girl with diagnosed severe ADHD. Which of the following is NOT routinely required?

A. Record of height and weight plotted on centile chart

- B. ECG
- C. Heart rate and blood pressure plotted on a centile chart
- D. Mental health and social assessment
- E. Assessment of cardiovascular symptoms

7. You have been seeing a 12 year old boy with ADHD. Parent training/education sessions proved ineffective. With the parents' consent you commenced the patient on low dose methylphenidate, 5mg daily. At the following review the methylphenidate is not working and the patient's behaviour continues to be impairing his social and academic functioning. You are happy that your diagnosis remains correct. He does not describe any side effects on questioning. What would your next step in treatment be?

A. Consider commencing low dose bupropion as an adjunct to methylphenidate

- B. Consider stopping methylphenidate and commencing Atomoxetine
- C. Stop medication and review diagnosis again
- D. Consider stopping methylphenidate and commencing low dose dexamfetamine
- E. Consider increasing the dose of methylphenidate

8. NICE guidance suggests that modified release preparations of methylphenidate should be considered for all the following reasons, except:

- A. Convenience
- B. To increase adherence
- C. To help in facilitating schools who cannot safely store medication
- D. Patients with co-morbid tic disorder
- E. Reducing stigma
- 9. ICD 10 diagnosis of hyperkinetic disorder includes all the following criteria, except:
- A. Inattention, hyperactivity and/or impulsivity persistent for at least 3 months
- B. Symptoms are pervasive across situations
- C. Symptoms are not caused by other disorders such as autism or affective disorders
- D. Symptoms cause impairment in social, academic or occupational functioning.
- E. All of the above
- 10. Adverse effects of Methylphenidate can include all, except:
- A. Raised blood pressure
- B. Anorexia
- C. Insomnia
- D. Growth acceleration
- E. Exaggeration of tic disorders

Additional Resources / Reading Materials

<u>Books</u>

□ Rutter's Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, Fifth Edition.

<u>Sir Michael Rutter</u>, <u>Dorothy Bishop</u>, Daniel Pine, Steven Scott, <u>Jim S. Stevenson</u>, <u>Eric A.</u> <u>Taylor, Anita Thapar</u>

- Child and Adolescent Psychiatry. <u>Robert Goodman</u> and <u>Stephen Scott</u>. Third Edition, Wiley-Blackwell
- Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder" by Professor Russell Barkley.

E-Learning

- Attention deficit hyperactivity disorder in children and adolescents. In this podcast Professor Heidi Feldman, from the Stanford University School of Medicine, talks with Dr Raj Persaud on attention deficit-hyperactivity disorder (ADHD) in children and adolescents; referring to her recent clinical review of the disorder published in the New England Journal of Medicine. http://www.psychiatrycpd.org/default.aspx?page=20527
- □ Neurobiology of ADHD, by Dr Katia Rubia
- http://www.psychiatrycpd.org/podcasts/neurobiologyofadhd.aspx

Guidelines

Attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD) (CG72)
 <u>http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/index.jsp?action=byTopic&o=7281</u>

Further Reading Resources

Evidence-based guidelines for the pharmacological management of attention deficit hyperactivity disorder: Update on recommendations from the British Association for Psychopharmacology Blanca Bolea-Alamañac1, David J Nutt2, Marios Adamou3, Phillip Asherson4, Stephen Bazire5, David Coghill6, David Heal7, Ulrich Müller8, John Nash9, Paramalah Santosh10, Kapil Sayal11, Edmund SonugaBarke12 and Susan J Young2 for the Consensus Group

Journal of Psychopharmacology 1-25, 2014

Downloaded from jop.sagepub.com at University of Bristol Library on February 15, 2014

Old Age

Session 1: Cognition

Learning Objectives

- The overall aim is for the trainee to gain an overview of cognition.
- By the end of the session trainees should:
 - Understand the brain regions involved in the various cognitive domains.
 - o Appreciate the concept and theory of a bedside cognitive assessment.
 - Have an awareness and understanding of the most common cognitive syndromes.
 - Be able to reflect on the limitations of cognitive assessment and screening tools.

Curriculum Links

• Old Age Section of the MRCPsych Curriculum: 8.3

Expert Led Session

• A Consultant led session based on the learning objectives listed above

Case Presentation

• Present a case that highlights the importance of a robust assessment, where the results of cognitive assessment have been instrumental in formulation and diagnosis in an older person presenting with cognitive deficits.

Journal Club Presentation

- Beishon, L.C., Batterham, A.P., Quinn, T.J., Nelson, C.P., Panerai, R.B., Robinson, T. and Haunton, V.J., 2019. Addenbrooke's Cognitive Examination III (ACE-III) and mini-ACE for the detection of dementia and mild cognitive impairment. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews, (12).
- Jutten, R.J., Harrison, J.E., Kjoe, P.R.L.M., Ingala, S., Vreeswijk, R., van Deelen, R.A.J., de Jong, F.J., Opmeer, E.M., Aleman, A., Ritchie, C.W. and Scheltens, P., 2019. Assessing cognition and daily function in early dementia using the cognitive-functional composite: findings from the Catch-Cog study cohort. Alzheimer's research & therapy, 11(1), p.45.
- Rashid, R., Standen, P., Carpenter, H. and Radford, K., 2019. Systematic review and meta-analysis of association between cognitive tests and on-road driving ability in people with dementia. Neuropsychological rehabilitation, pp.1-42.
- Rozum, W.J., Cooley, B., Vernon, E., Matyi, J. and Tschanz, J.T., 2019. Neuropsychiatric symptoms in s dementia: Associations with specific cognitive domains the Cache County Dementia Progression Study. International journal of geriatric psychiatry, 34(7), pp.1087-1094.

'555' Topic (5 slides with no more than 5 bullet points per slide)

- Bedside Testing of the frontal Lobe <u>or</u> parietal Lobe
- Normal age-related changes in cognitive function

• Alzheimer's vs vascular dementia - distinguishing features in the cognitive profile.

MCQs

1. A 67 year old male suffered from a cerebral infarct 5 weeks ago. Here is his CT brain scan result.



Which of the following tests is most likely to detect the related cognitive deficits?

- A. Abstract thinking
- B. Go-No-Go
- C. Cognitive estimates
- D. Stroop test
- E. Copying a cube
- 2. A 54 year old woman has been falling out with friends and her relationship with her husband is increasingly strained. She has been saying things in social situations that she would have previously found mortifying. Her driving has also become more erratic, often jumping red lights. She has also been involved in a couple of road rage incidents which is very unusual for her.

Which of the following screening tools would be most helpful in picking up associated cognitive deficits?

- A. MOCA
- B. 6-CIT
- C. Cornell
- D. MUST
- E. MMSE
- **3.** A 62 year old woman was referred as the GP was concerned she was depressed. She presents with loss of volition, blunting of affect, axial rigidity and problems with vision. They deny feeling depressed. An MRI brain scan demonstrates the 'hummingbird sign'.

What combination of deficits would you be likely to observe on a cognitive profile?

- A. Constructional apraxia and prosopagnosia.
- B. Impaired episodic memory an object knowledge.
- C. Visuospatial deficits and impaired naming.

- D. Dyscalculia and tactile agnosia.
- E. Impaired trail making and effortful, halting speech.
- 4. In Wenicke's aphasia, an assessment of language is most likely to demonstrate:
- A. Effortful speech
- B. Telegraphic speech
- C. Intact repetition
- D. Impaired comprehension
- E. Echolalia
- 5. A 58 year old gentleman presents with early stages of svPPA. Previously a keen amateur cook, he now struggles in the kitchen and keep asking his wife what various kitchen utensils are for. Cognitive tests show fluent speech and intact repetition. However, the content of their speech is vague with obvious word omissions and substitutions.

Which brain region has been affected by pathological change?

- A. Medical temporal lobe
- B. Hippocampus & entorhinal cortex
- C. Anterior inferior temporal lobe
- D. Dorsolateral prefrontal cortex
- E. Cerebellum
- 6. A 65 year old woman has been referred to the memory assessment service with forgetfulness causing her significant distress. Her mother had a history of Alzheimer's dementia. She is not sleeping very well and struggles to enjoy her usual hobbies. Her MOCA score was 20/30. During the assessment she often responded with 'I don't know' or gave approximate answers.

Which would be the most appropriate next step?

- A. Re-do the MOCA in 1 week with the support of relatives.
- B. Prescribe low dose benzodiazepines.
- C. Complete a MADRS scale and consider a trial of antidepressants.
- D. Arrange an MRI brain scan.
- E. Complete and ACE-III to look at the cognitive profile in more detail.

Additional Resources / Reading Material

Online:

- Montreal Cognitive Assessment (MOCA) available at: <u>www.mocatest.org</u>
- <u>https://www.alz.org/professionals/health-systems-clinicians/cognitive-assessment</u>
- <u>http://www.psychiatrycpd.co.uk/</u> Bedside assessment of cognition.

Journal Papers:

- Blanco-Campal, A., Diaz-Orueta, U., Navarro-Prados, A.B., Burke, T., Libon, D.J. and Lamar, M., 2019. Features and psychometric properties of the Montreal Cognitive Assessment: Review and proposal of a process-based approach version (MoCA-PA). Applied Neuropsychology: Adult, pp.1-15
- Bruno, D. and Vignaga, S.S., 2019. Addenbrooke's cognitive examination III in the diagnosis of dementia: a critical review. Neuropsychiatric disease and treatment, 15, p.441.
- Devita, M., Mondini, S., Bordignon, A., Sergi, G., Girardi, A., Manzato, E., Mapelli, D. and Coin, A., 2019. The importance of cognitive reserve in comprehensive geriatric assessment for dementia. Aging clinical and experimental research, pp.1-3.
- Emmert, N.A., Schwarz, L.R., Vander Wal, J.S. and Gfeller, J.D., 2019. Neuropsychological predictors of health and safety abilities in dementia. Applied Neuropsychology: Adult, pp.1-13.
- Kessels, R.P., 2019. Improving precision in neuropsychological assessment: Bridging the gap between classic paper-and-pencil tests and paradigms from cognitive neuroscience. The Clinical Neuropsychologist, 33(2), pp.357-368.
- McGuire, C., Crawford, S. and Evans, J.J., 2019. Effort testing in dementia assessment: A systematic review. Archives of Clinical Neuropsychology, 34(1), pp.114-131.
- Montoya-Murillo, G., Ibarretxe-Bilbao, N., Peña, J. and Ojeda, N., 2019. The impact of apathy on cognitive performance in the elderly. International journal of geriatric psychiatry, 34(5), pp.657-665.
- Morais, A., Santos, S. and Lebre, P., 2019. Psychomotor, functional, and cognitive profiles in older people with and without dementia: what connections?. Dementia, 18(4), pp.1538-1553.
- Naparstek, S., Linkovski, O. and O'Hara, R., 2019. The Future of Dementia Biomarkers Needs Better Neuropsychology. The American journal of psychiatry, 176(12), p.1050.
- Philip D. Harvey., 2019. Domains of cognition and their assessment. Dialogues Clinical Neuroscience, 21(3), pp.227-237.
- Phillips, N.A., Chertkow, H., Pichora-Fuller, M.K. and Wittich, W., 2020. Special Issues on Using the Montreal Cognitive Assessment for telemedicine Assessment during COVID-19. Journal of the American Geriatrics Society, 68(5), pp.942-944.
- Ramirez-Gomez, L., Zheng, L., Reed, B., Kramer, J., Mungas, D., Zarow, C., Vinters, H., Ringman, J.M. and Chui, H., 2017. Neuropsychological profiles differentiate Alzheimer disease from subcortical ischemic vascular dementia in an autopsy-defined cohort. Dementia and geriatric cognitive disorders, 44(1-2), pp.1-11.
- Rascovsky, K., 2016. A primer in neuropsychological assessment for dementia. PRACTICAL NEUROLOGY. <u>http://v2.practicalneurology.com/pdfs/pn0716_CF_Neuropsych.pdf</u>

- Supasitthumrong, T., Herrmann, N., Tunvirachaisakul, C. and Shulman, K., 2019. Clock drawing and neuroanatomical correlates: A systematic review. International journal of geriatric psychiatry, 34(2), pp.223-232.
- Tsoi, K.K., Chan, J.Y., Hirai, H.W., Wong, S.Y. and Kwok, T.C., 2015. Cognitive tests to detect dementia: a systematic review and meta-analysis. JAMA internal medicine, 175(9), pp.1450-1458.
- Wajman, J.R., Cecchini, M.A., Bertolucci, P.H.F. and Mansur, L.L., 2019. Quanti-qualitative components of the semantic verbal fluency test in cognitively healthy controls, mild cognitive impairment, and dementia subtypes. Applied Neuropsychology: Adult, 26(6), pp.533-542.

Guidelines:

NICE CG42 – Dementia <u>https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/Cg42</u>

Other resources:

- Chelune, G.J. and Duff, K., 2019. The assessment of change: serial assessments in dementia evaluations. In Handbook on the Neuropsychology of Aging and Dementia (pp. 61-76). Springer, Cham.
- Dening T., Thomas A., 2013. The Oxford Textbook of Old Age Psychiatry, 2nd edition. Oxford University Press.
- Hodges, J.R., 2017. Cognitive assessment for clinicians. Oxford University Press.
- Larner, A.J. ed., 2017. Cognitive screening instruments. Springer.
- Pavol, M.A., 2019. Inpatient Neuropsychological Assessment in Older Adults. In Handbook on the Neuropsychology of Aging and Dementia (pp. 89-103). Springer, Cham.
- Volkman, N., Cohen, N. and Vroman, G., 2018. Misinterpreting Cognitive Decline in the Elderly: Blaming the Patient. In Human Error in Medicine (pp. 93-122). CRC Press.

Session 2: Alzheimer's Disease

Learning Objectives

- The overall aim is for the trainee to gain an overview of Alzheimer's disease.
- By the end of the session trainees should:
 - Understand the epidemiology of Alzheimer's disease.
 - Understand the risk factors, genetics, neuropathology, neurotransmitters and neuroimaging associated with Alzheimer's disease.
 - Understand the clinical features of Alzheimer's disease, the assessment process and the principles of management.
 - o Understand the carer burden related to Alzheimer's disease.

Curriculum Links

• Old Age Section of the MRCPsych Curriculum: 8.1, 8.2, 8.3, 8.4, 8.5

Expert Led Session

• A Consultant led session based on the learning objectives listed above

Case Presentation

• A case to be presented which highlights the diagnostic process in a case of Alzheimer's disease and/or management of the related behavioural and psychological symptoms (BPSD) of Alzheimer's dementia. Please consider the learning objectives above.

Journal Club Presentation

- McShane, R., Westby, M.J., Roberts, E., Minakaran, N., Schneider, L., Farrimond, L.E., Maayan, N., Ware, J. and Debarros, J., 2019. Memantine for dementia. Cochrane database of systematic reviews, (3).
- Mühlbauer V, Luijendijk H, Dichter MN, Möhler R, Zuidema SU, Köpke S. Antipsychotics for agitation and psychosis in people with Alzheimer's disease and vascular dementia. The Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews. 2019 Apr;2019(4).
- Ryan, J., Storey, E., Murray, A.M., Woods, R.L., Wolfe, R., Reid, C.M., Nelson, M.R., Chong, T.T., Williamson, J.D., Ward, S.A. and Lockery, J.E., 2020. Randomized placebo-controlled trial of the effects of aspirin on dementia and cognitive decline. Neurology.
- Tampi R, Hassell C, Joshi P, Tampi D. 2018. Analgesics in the Management of Behavioral and Psychological Symptoms of Dementia: A Systematic Review. The American Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry. 31;26(3):S143-4.
- Tan EY, Köhler S, Hamel RE, Muñoz-Sánchez JL, Verhey FR, Ramakers IH. Depressive symptoms in mild cognitive impairment and the risk of dementia: a systematic review and comparative metaanalysis of clinical and community-based studies. Journal of Alzheimer's Disease. 2019 Jan 1;67(4):1319-29.

'555' Topic (5 slides with no more than 5 bullet points per slide)

- The use of antipsychotic medication in dementia and associate risks
- The NINCDS-ADRDA or NIA-AA criteria

MCQs

1. The prevalence of dementia in the general UK population older than 65 is approximately:

- A. 0.5-1%
- B. 2-4%
- **C.** 7%
- D. 15%
- E. 20%

2. In Alzheimer's Disease, the gene for Amyloid Precursor Protein (APP) is found on the long arm of chromosome:

- A. 1
- B. 12
- **C.** 21
- D. 19
- E. 27

3. Which of the following statements regarding biomarkers in Alzheimer's disease is true:

- A. The first biomarker change in Alzheimer's disease is reflected by a decrease in CSF tau levels
- B. β amyloidosis can only be detected in venous plasma samples
- C. Amyloid- β accumulation is not sufficient to cause disease progression
- D. PET imaging is estimated to be able to predict changes 25 years prior to symptoms
- E. All individuals that have positive biomarker results progress at the same rate.

4. A frail elderly gentleman is diagnosed with Alzheimer's dementia in the clinic. He has a history of moderate COPD and 1st degree heart block. He also has a history of peptic ulcers. Which would be the most appropriate first line drug to prescribe to slow cognitive decline and alleviate the behavioural and psychological symptoms of the dementia?

- A. Rivastigmine transdermal patch
- B. Galantamine
- C. Risperidone
- D. Donepezil
- E. Memantine

| 5. Which of the following combination of APOE alleles confers the highest risk of developing |
|--|
| Alzheimer's disease? |

A. 4:2

- **B.** 2:3
- **C**. 3:3
- **D.** 3:4
- **E.** 4:4

Additional Resources / Reading Materials

Online:

 <u>http://www.psychiatrycpd.co.uk/</u> (Dementia: breaking the 'bad news' – a guide for psychiatrists; inappropriate sexual behavior in dementia; Dementia: capacity, empowerment and conflicts of interest.)

Landmark papers

- Sultzer, D.L., Davis, S.M., Tariot, P.N., Dagerman, K.S., Lebowitz, B.D., Lyketsos, C.G., Rosenheck, R.A., Hsiao, J.K., Lieberman, J.A., Schneider, L.S. and Catie-AD Study Group, 2008. Clinical symptom responses to atypical antipsychotic medications in Alzheimer's disease: phase 1 outcomes from the CATIE-AD effectiveness trial. American Journal of Psychiatry, 165(7), pp.844-854.
- Banerjee, S., 2009. The use of antipsychotic medication for people with dementia: time for action.
- Tariot, P.N., Farlow, M.R., Grossberg, G.T., Graham, S.M., McDonald, S., Gergel, I. and Memantine Study Group, 2004. Memantine treatment in patients with moderate to severe Alzheimer disease already receiving donepezil: a randomized controlled trial. Jama, 291(3), pp.317-324.
- Dubois, B., Feldman, H.H., Jacova, C., DeKosky, S.T., Barberger-Gateau, P., Cummings, J., Delacourte, A., Galasko, D., Gauthier, S., Jicha, G. and Meguro, K., 2007. Research criteria for the diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease: revising the NINCDS–ADRDA criteria. The Lancet Neurology, 6(8), pp.734-746.

Journal papers:

- Dekhtyar S, Marseglia A, Xu W, Darin-Mattsson A, Wang HX, Fratiglioni L. Genetic risk of dementia mitigated by cognitive reserve: A cohort study. Annals of neurology. 2019 Jul;86(1):68-78.
- Emrani, S., Lamar, M., Price, C.C., Wasserman, V., Matusz, E., Au, R., Swenson, R., Nagele, R., Heilman, K.M. and Libon, D.J., 2019. Alzheimer's/Vascular Spectrum Dementia: Classification in Addition to Diagnosis. Journal of Alzheimer's Disease, (Preprint), pp.1-9.
- Giannini, L.A., Irwin, D.J., McMillan, C.T., Ash, S., Rascovsky, K., Wolk, D.A., Van Deerlin, V.M., Lee, E.B., Trojanowski, J.Q. and Grossman, M., 2017. Clinical marker for Alzheimer disease pathology in logopenic primary progressive aphasia. Neurology, 88(24), pp.2276-2284.

- Grande G, Rizzuto D, Vetrano DL, Marseglia A, Vanacore N, Laukka EJ, Welmer AK, Fratiglioni L. Cognitive and physical markers of prodromal dementia: A 12-year-long population study. Alzheimer's & Dementia. 2020 Jan;16(1):153-61.
- Jack, C.R., Bennett, D.A., Blennow, K., Carrillo, M.C., Dunn, B., Haeberlein, S.B., Holtzman, D.M., Jagust, W., Jessen, F., Karlawish, J. and Liu, E., 2018. NIA-AA Research Framework: Toward a biological definition of Alzheimer's disease. Alzheimer's & Dementia, 14(4), pp.535-562. Jensen, A.M., Pedersen, B.D., Olsen, R.B. and Hounsgaard, L., 2019. Medication and care in Alzheimer's patients in the acute care setting: A qualitative analysis. Dementia, 18(6), pp.2173-2188.
- Khoury, R. and Ghossoub, E., 2019. Diagnostic Biomarkers of Alzheimer's Disease: A State-of-the-Art Review. Biomarkers in Neuropsychiatry, p.100005.
- Li, C.H., Fan, S.P., Chen, T.F., Chiu, M.J., Yen, R.F. and Lin, C.H., 2020. Frontal variant of Alzheimer's disease with asymmetric presentation mimicking frontotemporal dementia: Case report and literature review. Brain and Behavior, 10(3), p.e01548.
- McKhann, G., Drachman, D., Folstein, M., Katzman, R., Price, D. and Stadlan, E.M., 1984. Clinical diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease: Report of the NINCDS-ADRDA Work Group* under the auspices of Department of Health and Human Services Task Force on Alzheimer's Disease. Neurology, 34(7), pp.939-939.
- McCleery J, Flicker L, Richard E, Quinn TJ. When is Alzheimer's not dementia—Cochrane commentary on The National Institute on Ageing and Alzheimer's Association Research Framework for Alzheimer 's Disease. Age and ageing. 2019 Mar 1;48(2):174-7.
- Sadiq, D., Whitfield, T., Lee, L., Stevens, T., Costafreda, S. and Walker, Z., 2017. Prodromal dementia with Lewy bodies and prodromal Alzheimer's disease: a comparison of the cognitive and clinical profiles. Journal of Alzheimer's Disease, 58(2), pp.463-470.
- Sinha K, Sun C, Kamari R, Bettermann K. Current status and future prospects of pathophysiologybased neuroprotective drugs for the treatment of vascular dementia. Drug Discovery Today. 2020 Apr 1;25(4):793-9.
- Stocker, H., Möllers, T., Perna, L. and Brenner, H., 2018. The genetic risk of Alzheimer's disease beyond APOE ε4: systematic review of Alzheimer's genetic risk scores. Translational psychiatry, 8(1), pp.1-9.
- Vermunt, L., Sikkes, S.A., Van Den Hout, A., Handels, R., Bos, I., Van Der Flier, W.M., Kern, S., Ousset, P.J., Maruff, P., Skoog, I. and Verhey, F.R., 2019. Duration of preclinical, prodromal, and dementia stages of Alzheimer's disease in relation to age, sex, and APOE genotype. Alzheimer's & Dementia, 15(7), pp.888-898.
- Wong S, Strudwick J, Devenney E, Hodges JR, Piguet O, Kumfor F. Frontal variant of Alzheimer's disease masquerading as behavioural-variant frontotemporal dementia: a case study comparison. Neurocase. 2019 Mar 4;25(1-2):48-58.
- Wong, B., Lucente, D.E., MacLean, J., Padmanabhan, J., Quimby, M., Brandt, K.D., Putcha, D., Sherman, J., Frosch, M.P., McGinnis, S. and Dickerson, B.C., 2019. Diagnostic evaluation and monitoring of patients with posterior cortical atrophy. Neurodegenerative Disease Management, 9(4), pp.217-239.

Guidelines

• <u>https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/Cg42</u>

Other resources

- Dening T., Thomas A., 2013. The Oxford Textbook of Old Age Psychiatry, 2nd edition. Oxford University Press.
- Taylor, D., Barnes, T., Young, A., 2018. The Maudsley Prescribing Guidelines in Psychiatry, 13th edition. Blackwell-Wiley.
- Stahl, SM, 2017. Prescriber's Guide: Stahl's Essential Psychopharmacology, 6th edition Cambridge University Press.
- World Health Organisation, 1992. ICD-10: The ICD-10 Classification of Mental and Behavioural Disorders : Clinical Descriptions and Diagnostic Guidelines. WHO.

| MCQ answers |
|---|
| Cognition |
| 1. E - the stroke has damaged the parietal lobe and would cause a constructional apraxia. The other tests are related to executive function and the frontal lobes. |
| 2. A - the MOCA tests for frontal lobe deficits. |
| 3. E –she is presenting with progressive supranuclear palsy. A non-fluent aphasia and executive impairment is most typical in the early stages. |
| 4. D |
| 5. C |
| C – she is presenting with a probable pseudodementia or depressive dysexecutive syndrome. The MADRS would help screen for this before starting appropriate treatment. |
| Alzheimer's |
| 1. C |
| 2. C |
| 3. C |
| 4. C |
| 5. E |

Across the Ages Session 1: Psychosis Across the Ages Learning Objectives

- The overall aim is for the trainee to gain an overview into the similarities and differences of psychosis across the different age ranges.
- By the end of the session, trainees should understand the commonality and differences in presentation of psychosis in different age groups.
- By the end of the session, trainees should understand the aetiology of psychosis in different age groups.
- By the end of the session, trainees should understand the assessment and treatment process for psychosis in the different age groups.

Curriculum Links

1b: Recognise how the stage of cognitive and emotional development may influence the aetiology, presentation and management of mental health problems

2a: Be familiar with contemporary ICD or DSM diagnostic systems with the ability to discuss the advantages and limitations of each

2a: State the typical signs and symptoms of psychiatric disorders as they manifest across the age range, including affective disorder; anxiety disorders; disorders of cognitive impairment; **psychotic disorders**; personality disorders; substance misuse disorders; organic disorders; developmental disorders; and common disorders in childhood

2a: Use the diagnostic system accurately in identifying specific signs and symptoms that comprise syndromes and disorders across the age range

2b: Describe the various biological, psychological and social factors involved in the predisposition to, the onset of and the maintenance of psychiatric disorders across the age range, including trauma

3a: Develop an individualised assessment and treatment plan for each patient and in collaboration with each patient

3a: Be able to explain to patients, families, carers and colleagues the process and outcome of assessment, investigation and treatment or therapeutic plan

3c: Accurately assess the individual patient's needs and whenever possible in agreement with the patient, formulate a realistic treatment plan for each patient for adult patients with common presenting problems.

3c: Be able to do the above with psychiatric problems as they present across the age range

3c: Consider the impact of the mental illness in an adult patient directly and indirectly on children and young people in the adult's care or who are likely to come into contact with the adult.

7a: Define the clinical presentations and natural history of patients with severe and enduring mental illness

Extended Expert Led Session (incorporating case discussion)

 A Consultant-led presentation based on the learning objectives above focusing on psychosis across the ages. Session co-ordinated by Trust MRCPsych Lead, with panel of 3 experts, representing Child and Adolescent, Old Age and General Adult Psychiatry

Local Education Providers have flexibility on how to run this session

Journal Club articles (if used)

Child and Adolescent:

 Etiological and Clinical Features of Childhood Psychotic Symptoms: Results From a Birth Cohort. Polanczyk, Moffit, Arseneault, Cannon, Ambler, Keefe, Houts, Odgers, Caspi. 2010. Arch Gen Psychiatry/Vol 67 (4)

General Adult:

 Care Transition from Child/Adolescents to Adult Services, Tuomainen H., Appleton R., Singh S.P., 2020. Mental Health and Illness of Children and Adolescents. Mental Health and Illness Worldwide. Springer, Singapore. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-0753-</u> 8_50-1

Older Adult:

• Brunelle, S., Cole, M. G., & Elie, M. (2012). Risk factors for the late-onset psychoses: a systematic review of cohort studies. International journal of geriatric psychiatry, 27(3), 240-252.

'555' Topics (if used)

Choose one:

- Choice of anti-psychotic treatment in the three age groups
- Differences in psychological and social interventions for psychosis in the three age groups

MCQs

- 1) Following adolescent onset psychosis, the worst outcome with chronic course is associated with:
 - A. A Bipolar Disorder
 - B. B Personality Disorder
 - C. C Severe depression with psychosis
 - D. D Schizophrenia
 - E. E Drug induced psychosis

2) If you are working with a 15-year-old boy who is presenting with auditory hallucinations and a belief that they are being followed, which 4 question areas are most relevant?

- A. Family history of psychosis
- B. Recent drug use, including cannabis
- C. Recent decline in motivation, academic performance and self-care
- D. Recent change in affect
- E. Recent change in concentration and energy levels

3) A long duration of untreated psychosis is most strongly associated with:

- A. Urban Living
- B. Living alone
- C. Ethnicity
- D. Level of education
- E. Insidious onset

4) Which of the following statements is FALSE with regards to cognitive impairment in

schizophrenia:

- A. It is consistent with the neurodevelopmental theory of schizophrenia
- B. It is present in drug-naïve patients
- C. It is present in the majority of patients with schizophrenia
- D. It is not clearly related to specific symptoms
- E. It is only found in chronic elderly patients
- 5) Schizophrenia in those over the age of 60 is most accurately described by the term:
 - A. Late-onset schizophrenia
 - B. Very-late onset schizophrenia
 - C. Paraphrenia
 - D. Dementia praecox
 - E. Delusional disorder

6) All but the following are described as risk factors for late-onset psychosis:

- A. Sensory impairment
- B. Social isolation
- C. Polypharmacy
- D. Male gender
- E. Age-related deterioration of frontal and temporal lobes

7) Late onset psychosis is less frequently accompanied by which of the following:

- A. Delusions of misidentification
- B. Partition delusions
- C. Thought disorder
- D. Visual hallucinations
- E. Jealousy

Additional Resources / Reading Materials

Child and Adolescent:

- Emerging psychiatric syndromes associated with antivoltage-gated potassium channel complex antibodies Prüss H, Lennox BR. J Neurol Neurosurg Psychiatry 2016;0:1–6. doi:10.1136/jnnp-2015-313000
- Datta SS, Daruvala R, Kumar A. Psychological interventions for psychosis in adolescents. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews 2020, Issue 7. Art. No.: CD009533. https://doi.org/10.1002/14651858.CD009533.pub2
- •

https://www.aacap.org/App_Themes/AACAP/docs/resources_for_primary_care/cap_resources_ _for_medical_student_educators/Pediatric%20Psychosis.ppt

Old Age

Karim S, & Byrne EJ. (2005). Treatment of psychosis in elderly people. Advances in Psychiatric Treatment, 11(4), 286-296.

Owen MJ, Sawa A, Mortensen PB (2016). Schizophrenia. The Lancet (Vol 388)

FORENSIC

Session 1: Psychiatry and the Criminal Justice System

Learning Objectives

- To develop an understanding of the structure and organisation of the criminal justice system
- To develop an understanding of the mental health of prisoners and understand the complexities of their treatment
- To develop an understanding of the structure and organisation of secure psychiatric services and the different levels of security
- To develop an understanding of the framework around the management of mentally-disordered offenders

Curriculum Links

12.2 Psychiatry and the criminal Justice System

- 12.2.1 The role of the psychiatrist in the assessment of mentally disordered offenders: during arrest, prior to conviction; prior to sentencing
- 12.3 Practising psychiatry in a secure setting
- 12.3.1 The role of security in a therapeutic environment
- 12.3.2 The essential components of a forensic service
- 12.3.3 Knowledge of the prevalence of psychiatric disorder in prison populations, suicide in prisoners and psychiatric treatment in prison settings
- 12.3.4 Risk management planning in forensic psychiatric practice
- 12.3.5 Managing mentally disordered offenders discharged into the community

Expert Led Session

An introduction to the criminal justice system. To include:

- Police detention and diversion
- Prison structure and organisation and prison categories
- Mental health care in prison
- Pathways into secure settings
- MAPPA

Case Presentation

Case presentation on 'progression through the criminal justice system to hospital'.

- If trainee has a suitable case of a mentally-disordered offender then they may present this.
- The trainee can come to the Edenfield Centre where a suitable case can be found for them to access case notes and / or meet patient (if appropriate)

Journal Club Presentation

Please select one of the following papers:

| • Fazel S, Fiminska Z, Cocks C & Coid J, Patient outcomes following discharge from secure psychiatric | | |
|---|--|--|
| hospitals: a systematic review and meta-analysis, BJPsych 2016, 208: 17 – 25 | | |
| http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/26729842 | | |
| Fazel S & Baillargeon J, The health of prisoners, <i>Lancet</i> 2011 377: 956 – 65 | | |
| http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/21093904 | | |
| • Shaw J, Baker D, Hunt IM et al, Suicide by prisoners: national clinical survey, <i>BJPsych</i> 2004, 184: 263 | | |
| - 7 http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/14990526 | | |
| • Bhui K, Ullrich S, Kallis C & Coid J, Criminal justice pathways to psychiatric care for psychosis, | | |
| BJPsych 2015, 1 – 7 | | |
| http://bjp.rcpsych.org/content/early/2015/11/09/bjp.bp.114.153882 | | |
| '555' Topic (5 slides with no more than 5 bullet points) | | |
| Please select one topic: | | |
| Relational security | | |
| Procedural security | | |
| Structural security | | |
| Levels of security – high / medium / low | | |
| Mental health in reach teams | | |
| MCQs | | |
| 1. What is the relative risk of psychosis in prisons compared to the general population? | | |
| A. 5 | | |
| B. 10 | | |
| C. 20 | | |
| D. 100 | | |
| E. 2 | | |
| 2. How many homicide offenders have active psychiatric symptoms at the time of committing the | | |
| homicide? | | |
| A. 1 in 10 | | |
| B. 1 in 5 | | |
| C. 1 in 3 | | |
| D. 1 in 2 | | |
| E. 1 in 4 | | |
| 3. The rate of suicide is highest in: | | |
| A. Service users in the community | | |
| B. Sentenced prisoners | | |
| C. Service users in general psychiatric wards | | |
| D. Older prisoners facing long sentences | | |
| E. Remand prisoners | | |
| 4. Which is the most common psychiatric condition in prisoners? | | |

A. Depression

- B. Personality disorder
- C. Psychopathy
- D. Psychosis
- E. Neurosis

5. What is the prevalence of major depression in male prisoners?

- A. 10%
- B. 12%
- C. 25%
- D. 3.7%
- E. 50%

EMI Questions

Mental Health Act:

- A. Section 35
- B. Section 36
- C. Section 37
- D. Section 38
- E. Section 45A
- F. Section 47 / 49
- G. Section 48 / 49
- H. Section 41

Match the description to the correct section under part III Mental Health Act 1983:

- 1. Interim Hospital Order
- 2. Removal to hospital of a sentenced prisoner
- 3. Remand to hospital for a report
- 4. Hospital direction and limitation direction
- 5. Removal to hospital of an un-sentenced prisoner
- 6. Hospital order
- 7. Restriction Order
- 8. Remand to hospital for treatment

Mental Health Act:

- A. Section 35
- B. Section 36
- C. Section 37 +/- 41
- D. Section 38
- E. Section 45A
- F. Section 47 / 49
- G. Section 48 / 49

For each of the following scenarios, which section of the Mental Health Act 1983 would be most appropriate to admit the patient under?

1. Bob is 2 years into a 17-year sentence for armed robbery. Whilst in prison he becomes unwell – he worries that the prison officers are poisoning his food, believes there are cameras in his cell and has become aggressive and violent. He refuses to accept treatment because he believes it is part of the conspiracy to poison him.

2. Sharon has been found guilty of burglary and is in HMP anywhere. She reports experiencing distressing command hallucinations to harm herself and others. She is being cared for on the hospital wing and has attempted to hang herself. Treatment is ineffective.

3. Peter kills his next-door neighbour because he believes that he is the devil and was planning to harm his children. He experienced command hallucinations from God instructing him to do so. He goes to Court, where it is accepted that Peter suffers from paranoid schizophrenia and psychiatrists recommend admission to hospital. However, he is found guilty of murder.

4. Annabelle has a known history of bipolar affective disorder. She stopped taking her medication and during a manic episode set fire to her flat. This is her fourth fire-setting episode when she has been manic. She frequently disengages from her CMHT and stops taking her medication. You are of the opinion that she requires admission to hospital to stabilise her mental state and complete some work around her fire-setting and compliance. Which section would you recommend to the Court?

5. Simon is a member of the Jelly Baby Street gang. He has an extensive criminal record with offences for violence, theft, carrying weapons and possession of illicit substances. He is not known to mental health services. He has been convicted of a section 18 wounding with intent (GBH) after he stabbed a rival gang member in the face for giving him a funny look. Whilst on remand he develops an acute psychotic illness during which he becomes aggressive as he believes that the dentist has planted a monitoring device in his teeth. He has removed several teeth looking for this. You believe he should be admitted to hospital and are asked to prepare a court report for sentencing. Which section would you recommend?

6. Sandeep has appeared in court charged with assault, for which she is on bail. She has a known history of schizoaffective disorder and is showing signs of relapse. She does not engage with the community team when unwell and will not accept treatment voluntarily. She won't engage in assessments as to whether her offence was related to her mental disorder. You are of the opinion that she requires admission to hospital urgently.

Additional Resources / Reading Materials

Books

Chapters 3, 5 & 24 in 'Forensic Psychiatry: Clinical and ethical issues' Gunn J & Taylor P, (2013) CRC Press

- Chapters 1, 2, 3, 17 & 18 in 'Practical Forensic Psychiatry,' Clark T & Rooprai DS (2011) Hodder Arnold
- Chapters 8 & 17 *in* 'Oxford Specialist Handbook: Forensic Psychiatry,' Eastman N, Adshead G, Fox S et al (2012) Oxford Medical Publishing

E-Learning

• RCPsych CPD online: 'Suicides in prison'

Journal Articles

- Birmingham L (2001) Diversion from custody. Advances in Psychiatric Treatment 7: 198 207
- Birmingham L, Gray J, Mason D et al (2000) Mental illness at reception into prison. *Criminal Behaviour* and Mental Health 10(2); 77 87
- Coid JW (1998) Socio-economic deprivation and admission rates to secure forensic services. *Psychiatric Bulletin* 22: 294 – 297
- Coid JW, Hickey N, Kahtan N et al (2007) Patients discharged from medium secure forensic psychiatry services: reconvictions and risk factors. *British Journal of Psychiatry* 190: 223 229
- Department of Health (2009) *The Bradley Report: Lord Bradley's review of people with mental health problems or learning disabilities in the Criminal Justice System.* London: Department of Health
- Hassan L, Birmingham L, Harty M et al (2011) Prospective cohort study of mental health during imprisonment. *British Journal of Psychiatry* 198: 37 – 42
- Liebling A (1995) Vulnerability and prison suicide. British Journal of Criminology 35: 173 187
- Lyall M & Bartlett A (2010) Decision making in medium security: can he have leave? *Journal of Forensic Psychiatry and Psychology* 21 (6): 887 901
- Marzano L, Hawton K, Rivlin A & Fazel S (2011). Psychosocial influences on prisoner suicide: A case control study of near-lethal self-harm in women prisoners. *Social Science & Medicine* 72: 874 883
- Shaw J, Hunt IM, Flynn S et al (2006) Rates of mental disorder in people convicted of homicide. National clinical survey. *British Journal of Psychiatry* 188: 143 – 147

ID

Session 1

Session 1: History Taking and Communication in Patients with an Intellectual Disability

Learning Objectives

- Awareness of the difficulties encountered in assessing patients with an intellectual disability
- Use of other forms of communication rather than just verbal
- The importance and role of the developmental history
- To develop an understanding of how patients with an intellectual disability can present with conditions such as a mental disorder

Curriculum Links

- 13.3 Clinical
- 13.3.1 Assessment and communication with people with intellectual disability.
- 13.3.2 The presentation and diagnosis of psychiatric illness and behavioral disorder in people with intellectual disability, including the concept of diagnostic overshadowing
- 13.2.2 Aetiology. The influence of psychological and social factors on intellectual and emotional development in people with intellectual disability, including the concept of secondary handicap.

Expert Led Session

• Assessment, interviewing & gathering information in adults with Intellectual disability

Case Presentation

Case presentation of local patient with intellectual disability, identified by tutor or specialist in
post. (This does not have to be an inpatient and discussion with the local ID team may be
appropriate in advance to identify such a case). Brief discussion on aetiology as applicable to the
case in a formulation type summary

Journal Club Presentation

- Assessment of mental health problems in people with autism Xenitidis K., Paliokosta E., Maltezos
 S. and Pappas V. (2007). Advances in Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 1, 4, 15-22.
- A guide to intellectual disability psychiatry assessments in the community. Advances in psychiatry Treatment November 1, 2013 19:429-436
- Learning disability in the accident and emergency department. Advances in Psychiatric Treatment January 2005 11:45-57

'555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

Please select one of the following:

- Assessment of the agitated patient in the emergency room setting (focus on environment, style of communication, getting informant history etc)
- How to assess for a mental illness in a patient with a Intellectual disability (Focus on depressed mood or psychosis depending on confidence of chair- possible mute patient, signs and how they differ, role of biological symptoms and effect on routine)
- How to perform a full Developmental History (Focus on all aspects of development and issues of schooling, statement of educational needs, support and current functional ability etc)

MCQs

1. With regard to people with intellectual disabilities, which of the following is false:

A. Diagnosis of intellectual disability is dependent on significantly sub-average IQ and associated deficits in adaptive behaviour with onset occurring before 18 years of age

B. The prevalence of intellectual disability in the general population is 3%

C.Mental health problems are more common than in the general population

D.Mental health problems always present as challenging behaviour

E. The philosophy of normalisation supports people with intellectual disabilities accessing generic health services.

2. According to ICD-10, the following is not a degree of mental retardation:

A. Borderline

B. Moderate

C. Profound

D. Severe

E. Mild

3. Disruptive and dissocial behaviour occurs more commonly in which of the following category?

A. Mild intellectual disability

B. Moderate intellectual disability

C.Severe intellectual disability

D. Profound intellectual disability

E. Equally common across all categories

4. The prevalence of epilepsy in the intellectual disability population is approximately:

A. 1-2%

- B. 5-10%
- C.10-15%
- D.20-25%

E. 50%

5. The communication style that does not interfere with assessment in the intellectual disability population is:

- A. Denial
- **B.** Fabrication
- C.Engagement
- D. Digression
- E. Suggestibility

Additional Resources / Reading Materials

<u>Books</u>

Intellectual Disability Psychiatry: A Practical Handbook. Edited by Angela Hassiotis, Diana Andrea Barron and Ian Hall.(2010) Wiley Publications. The Psychiatry of Intellectual Disability. Edited by Meera Roy, Ashok Roy & David Clark. 2006 *Radcliffe Publishing Ltd.* Royal College of Psychiatrists. DC-LD: Diagnostic Criteria for Psychiatric Disorders for Use with Adults with Learning Disabilities/mental Retardation (Occasional paper) http://www.rcpsych.ac.uk/publications/collegereports/op/op48.aspx

E-Learning

http://www.gmc-uk.org/learningdisabilities/

Journal Articles

Cooper, A., Simpson, N. (2006). Assessment and classification of psychiatric disorders in adults with learning disabilities. *Psychiatry*, 5: 306-11. Cooper, S.-A., van der Speck, R. (2009) Epidemiology of mental ill health in adults with intellectual disabilities. *Current Opinion in Psychiatry*. 22: 431-436.

Psychotherapy

Session 1: Referring to Psychotherapy Services

Learning Objectives

Identify relevance to psychotherapy of particular aspects of the psychiatric history. Account for psychiatric presentation in psychological terms. Know when to refer patients appropriately to specialist services Understand that psychotherapies have an empirical evidence base underpinning referral for treatment

Curriculum Links

6 - Organization & Delivery of Psychiatric Services

7.1.x.4 – Psychological aspects of treatment

9.0 – Psychotherapy

9.1.1 – Dynamic Psychotherapy

or 9.3 CBT or 9.4 other modalities *

*Depending on case material and therapy described.

Expert Led Session

What happens in a specialist psychotherapy assessment and why? What therapies are indicated for which common conditions? – To include reference to the current evidence base. NICE Guidance and its limits / omissions.

Case Presentation

Case presentation of a local patient referred for psychotherapy. Case to be identified by tutor/chair/specialist in post.

To highlight aspects of psychiatric history that indicate referral to psychotherapy.

To highlight aspects of history that would be relevant for specialist psychotherapy assessment. To highlight factors that suggest good or bad prognostic signs for therapy outcome.

Journal Club Presentation

The paper should preferably be selected in discussion with the chair / presenter of the expert led session

- Schöttke H. et al (2017) "Predicting psychotherapy outcome based on therapist interpersonal skills: A five-year longitudinal study of a therapist assessment protocol" *Psychotherapy Research* 27(6): 642–652
- Clarke et al (2013) "Cognitive analytic therapy for personality disorder: randomised controlled trial" *BJP* 202:129-134 (with accompanying Editorial) Mulder & Chanen (2013) "Effectiveness of cognitive analytic therapy for personality disorders" *BJP* 202:89-90

• Lorentzen et al (2013) "Comparison of short- and long-term dynamic group psychotherapy: randomised clinical trial" BJP 203:280-287

Leichsenring & Rabung (2008) "Effectiveness of Long-Term Psychodynamic Psychotherapy: A Meta-Analysis" JAMA 300(13): 1551-1565

555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

Select one of the following:

- Important aspects of psychiatric history to include in referral
- Positive predictors of engagement with therapy
- Relative contraindications to therapy
- Potential adverse effects of therapy

MCQs

1. The following theorists are correctly matched with the concepts that they introduced:

- A. Sigmund FreudB. Melanie Klein
- The Subconscious
- The Paranoid-Schizoid Position

The Ego

- C. David Malan The Two Triangle technique Containment
- D. Herbert Rosenfeld
- E. Anna Freud

2. Defences:

- A. Are always pathological.
- B. Reduce anxiety.
- C. Enhance conscious insight.
- D. Are universal.
- E. Develop later in childhood.
- 3. A psychotherapy formulation:
- A. Leads to a diagnosis.
- B. Ignores the past.
- C. Is only applicable in psychotherapy.
- D. Is theory neutral.
- E. Makes predictions.
- 4. How do you define transference?
- A. The empathy shown by the therapist to the patient.
- B. Defence mechanism where attention is shifted to a less threatening / more benign target.
- C. Therapist's response to the patient drawn from therapist's previous life experiences.

- D. Patient's response to the therapist based upon their earlier relationships
- E. All of the above

5. What would suggest a patient has good psychological mindedness?

- A. Becoming very upset when talking about the past
- B. Finding it hard to step back and observe the situation objectively
- C. Needing to be talked through assessment with lots of prompts
- D. Reasonable sense of self esteem
- E. None of the above.

Additional Resources / Reading Materials

Jessica Yakeley (2014)"Psychodynamic psychotherapy: developing the evidence base" APT 20:269-279

Chess Denman (2011) "The place of psychotherapy in modern psychiatric practice" APT 17:243-249

Substance Misuse Session 1: Diagnosis and Treatment for People with Alcohol Problems Learning Objectives

- Assessment, diagnosis and treatment of people with alcohol problems
- To develop awareness of complications associated with alcohol use
- To understand some of the practical aspects of managing people with alcohol problems
- To gain awareness of local provisions and guidelines

Curriculum Links

| 11.1 | Basic pharmacology and epidemiology |
|------|---|
| 11.3 | Problem drinking; alcohol dependence; alcohol-related disabilities. |
| | In-patient and out-patient detoxification |
| 11.4 | Biological, psychological and socio-cultural explanations of drug and |
| | alcohol dependence |
| 11.7 | The assessment and management of alcohol misusers |
| 11.8 | Culturally appropriate strategies for the prevention of drug and |
| | alcohol abuse |

Expert Led Session

- Pharmacology / Neuropharmacology
- Classification
- Assessment
- Epidemiology
- Health Consequences
- Treatment issues

Case Presentation

- Exploration of alternatives to admission for person with alcohol withdrawals why admission would be needed
- Highlight assessment and management of comorbid physical symptoms in person
 with alcohol problems
- Liaison with local alcohol services for follow up

Journal Club Presentation

- van den Brink, W., Aubin H.J., Bladström A., Torup L., Gual A., Mann K. (2013) Efficacy of as-needed nalmefene in alcohol-dependent patients with at least a high drinking risk level: results from a subgroup analysis of two randomized controlled 6month studies. *Alcohol and alcoholism*, 48(5), 570-8.
- Schwarzinger, M., Pollock, B., Hasan, O., Dufouil, C., Rehm, J., Baillot, S., Luchini, S. (2018). Contribution of alcohol use disorders to the burden of dementia in France 2008–13: a nationwide retrospective cohort study. *The Lancet Public Health*, 3(3):e124-e132.
- Wood, A., Kaptoge, S., Butterworth, A., Willeit, P., Warnakula, S., Bolton, T., Danesh, J. (2018). Risk thresholds for alcohol consumption: combined analysis of individual-participant data for 599 912 current drinkers in 83 prospective studies. *The Lancet*, 391(10129), 1513-1523.

'555' Topics (5 slides on each topic with no more than 5 bullet points)

- Alcohol Related Brain Damage
- Screening for alcohol use
- Foetal alcohol syndrome
- Long term physical complications from alcohol use

MCQs

- 1. Which of the following statements about Disulfiram is false:
- A. Previous history of CVA is a contraindication
- B. Disulfiram use will result in an decrease in accumulation of acetaldehyde in the blood stream
- C. A loading dose can be used for initiation
- D. Disulfiram may have a role in the treatment of cocaine dependence
- E. Hepatic cell damage is a recognised adverse effect of Disulfiram
- 2. The following are true of Wernicke Encephalopathy except:
- A. Classic triad is ocular motor abnormalities, cerebellar dysfunction, and altered mental state
- B. Only 20% of patients present with the full triad
- C. Altered mental state occurs in 40%
- D. Altered mental state symptoms include: mental sluggishness, apathy, impaired awareness
- of an immediate situation, an inability to concentrate, confusion or agitation

E. Ocular motor abnormalities occur in 30%

3. Which of the following is not a reason to consider inpatient setting for alcohol detoxification based on Nice Guidelines:

A. Drink over 50 units of alcohol per day

B. Have a score of more than 30 on the Severity of Alcohol Dependence Questionnaire

C. Have a history of epilepsy, or experience of withdrawal-related seizures or delirium tremens during previous assisted withdrawal programmes

D. Need concurrent withdrawal from alcohol and benzodiazepines

E. Consider a lower threshold for inpatient or residential assisted withdrawal in vulnerable groups, for example, homeless and older people.

4. Features required for a diagnosis of dependence within ICD 10 include the following except:

A. A strong desire or sense of compulsion to take the substance;

B. Difficulties in controlling substance-taking behaviour in terms of its onset, termination, or levels of use;

C. A physiological withdrawal state when substance use has ceased or have been reduced, as evidenced by: the characteristic withdrawal syndrome for the substance; or use of the same (or closely related) substance with the intention of relieving or avoiding withdrawal symptoms;

D. Evidence of tolerance, such that increased doses of the psychoactive substance are required in order to achieve effects originally produced by lower doses

E. Returning to substance use after a period of abstinence leads to more rapid reappearance of features of dependence than with non-dependent individuals

5. The following are correct calculation of units of alcohol (percentages are in vol/vol) corrected to nearest whole number:

A. 750 mls of 11% wine is 8 units

B. 6 Litres of 4.5% cider is 18 units

C. 5 cans of 330 mls of 4.8% lager is 8 units

D. 3 cans of 440 mls of 7.5% strong lager is 10 units

E. 2 bottles of 700 mls of 17% fortified wine is 24 units

EMI Questions Drugs used in Alcohol Dependence: Α. Disulfiram Β. Acamprosate C. Naltrexone D. Baclofen E. Diazepam F. Oxazepam G. Lorazepam Η. Vitamin B compound strong Thiamine Ι. J. Nalmefene 1a. Which medication should not be given if serum creatinine >120 micromol/L) 1b. Which medication used for detoxification should be avoided in patients with impaired liver function 1c. Which medication acts as a selective GABA-B agonist. Investigations for people with alcohol use Α. Gamma-glutamyl transferase (GGT) Β. Mean corpuscular volume C. Carbohydrate-deficient transferrin (CDT) Total bilirubin D.

- E. Albumin
- F. INR
- G. Magnesium
- H. Globulin
- I. Alkaline phosphatase
- J. Platelet Count

2a. This marker has Sensitivity of 50 to 70% in the detection of high levels of alcohol consumption in the last 1 to 2 months but false positive with hepatitis, cirrhosis, cholestatic jaundice, metastatic carcinoma, treatment with simvastatin and obesity

2b. This is used in the calculation of the Maddrey's Discriminant Function for Alcoholic Hepatitis 2c. A reduction in this can lead to increased risk of seizures and can be related to use of proton pump inhibitors.

| MCQ Answers | |
|---|--|
| Q1 B Disulfiram use will result in an increase in accumulation of acetaldehyde in the blood | |
| stream | |
| Q2 C Answer is 80% | |
| Q3 A Should be that a person drinks over 30 units of alcohol per day | |
| Q4 E is mentioned but not a feature required for diagnosis | |
| Q5 B should be obviously wrong = 27 units, no need to work out all the rest | |
| Formula is (percent alcohol x volume in ml) /1000 | |
| Hence for 750 mls of 11% wine is (750 x 11)/1000 = 8.25 units | |
| However, a litre of x% vol/vol is x units | |
| So, a litre of 6% cider is 6 units | |
| So, 6 litres of 4% cider is 24 units, idea is rather than working them all out, should be able to | |
| scan them and identify incorrect number | |
| | |
| EMI 1 | |
| (1a) B Listed as a contraindication - primarily excreted in the urine and not significantly | |
| metabolised | |
| (1b) E This is due to the long half-life of diazepam | |
| (1c) D | |
| EMI 2 | |
| (2a) A | |
| (2b) D | |
| Maddrey's Discriminant Function Formula : 4.6 * (Prothrombin Time – Contro | |
| Prothrombin Time) + Total Bilirubin) | |
| If score more than 32 indicates a poor prognosis and potential for steroid use. | |
| (2c) G | |
| Additional Resources / Reading Materials | |
| | |
| Books | |
| Edwards, G. Alcohol: The World's Favorite Drug. Institute of Psychiatry London | |

• Sigman, A. Alcohol Nation: How to protect our children from today's drinking culture

E-Learning

Epidemiological Public Health Data England (Alcohol given as example) <u>https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/local-alcohol-</u> profiles/data#page/1/gid/1938132984/pat/6/par/E12000002/ati/101/are/E08000003 GP learning resource centre

• http://www.smmgp.org.uk/

Royal College of Psychiatrists CPD Online

- Alcohol and the brain
- Alcohol-related brain damage
- Driving and mental disorders

Royal College of Psychiatrists Faculty of Addictions Psychiatry

• <u>http://www.rcpsych.ac.uk/workinpsychiatry/faculties/addictions.aspx</u>

Society for study of addictions

- <u>https://www.addiction-ssa.org/knowledge-hub/</u>
- Journal Articles
 - Al Alawi, A. M., Majoni, S. W., & Falhammar, H. (2018). Magnesium and human health: perspectives and research directions. *International Journal of Endocrinology*, 2018.
 - Anton, R. F., O'Malley, S. S., Ciraulo, D. A., Cisler, R. A., Couper, D., Donovan, D. M., et al. (2006). Combined pharmacotherapies and behavioral interventions for alcohol. dependence: the COMBINE study: a randomized controlled trial. *JAMA*, 295(17), 2003-2017.
 - Babor, T. F., Higgins-Biddle, J. C., Saunders, J. B., & Monteiro, M. G. (2001). The alcohol use disorders identification test. Geneva: World Health Organization.
 - Ballard, H. S. (1997). The hematological complications of alcoholism. *Alcohol health and research world*, *21*(1), 42.
 - Ellul, M. A., Gholkar, S. A., & Cross, T. J. (2015). Hepatic encephalopathy due to liver cirrhosis. *Bmj*, *351*, h4187.
 - Group, P. (1998). Matching alcoholism treatments to client heterogeneity: treatment main effects and matching effects on drinking during treatment. Project MATCH Research Group. *Journal of Studies on Alcohol*, 58(1), 7-29.
 - Holmes, J., Angus, C., Buykx, P., Ally, A., Stone, T., Meier, P., & Brennan, A. (2016). Mortality and morbidity risks from alcohol consumption in the UK: analyses using the Sheffield Alcohol Policy Model (v. 2.7) to inform the UK Chief Medical Officers' review of the UK lower risk drinking guidelines. *Sheffield: ScHARR, University of Sheffield*.
 - Ijaz, S., Jackson, J., Thorley, H., Porter, K., Fleming, C., Richards, A., Savović, J. (2017). Nutritional deficiencies in homeless persons with problematic drinking: A systematic review. *International Journal for Equity in Health*, 16(1), 71.

- Jones, A. W. (2010). Evidence-based survey of the elimination rates of ethanol from blood with applications in forensic casework. *Forensic science international*, 200(1-3), 1-20.
- Jones, A. W. (2010). The relationship between blood alcohol concentration (BAC) and breath alcohol concentration (BrAC): a review of the evidence. *Road safety web publication*, *15*, 1-43.
- Juniper, M., Smith, N., Kelly, K., & Mason, M. (2013). Measuring the units–a review of patients who died with alcohol-related liver disease. *London: National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death*.
- Koob, G. F. (2020). Neurobiology of opioid addiction: Opponent process, hyperkatifeia, and negative reinforcement. *Biological psychiatry*, *87*(1), 44-53.
- Lifestyle Statistics Health and Social Care Information Centre. (2008). Statistics on alcohol : England, 2013. London: Department of Health.
- Mann, K., Lemenager, T., Hoffmann, S., Reinhard, I., Hermann, D., Batra, A., et al. (2013). Results of a double-blind, placebo-controlled pharmacotherapy trial in alcoholism conducted in Germany and comparison with the US COMBINE study. *Addiction Biology*, *18*(6), 937-946.
- Miller, W., & Wilbourne, P. (2002). Mesa Grande: A methodological analysis of clinical trials of treatments for alcohol use disorders. *Addiction*, 93(3), 265-277.
- National Institute for Health and Care Excellence. (2010). Alcohol use disorders: diagnosis and clinical management of alcohol related physical complications CG100. London: National Institute for Health and Care Excellence.
- National Institute for Health and Care Excellence. (2011). Alcohol use disorders: diagnosis, assessment and management of harmful drinking and alcohol dependence CG115. London: National Institute for Health and Care Excellence.
- National Institute for Health and Care Excellence. (2014). Alcohol use disorders: preventing harmful drinking PH24. London: National Institute for Health and Care Excellence.
- National Institute for Health and Care Excellence. (2016). Cirrhosis in over 16s: assessment and management. NG 50. London: National Institute for Health and Care Excellence.
- Newsome, P. N., Cramb, R., Davison, S. M., Dillon, J. F., Foulerton, M., Godfrey, E. M., ... & Mackie, A. (2018). Guidelines on the management of abnormal liver blood tests. *Gut*, *67*(1), 6-19

- NHS Digital. (2020). Statistics on Alcohol, England 2020. <u>https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/statistics-on-alcohol/2020</u>
- Office of National Statistics. (2017). Alcohol-specific deaths in the UK: registered in 2016. In Office of National Statistics. <u>https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/caus</u> esofdeath/bulletins/alcoholrelateddeathsintheunitedkingdom/registeredin2016
- Office of National Statistics. (2017) Statistics on Alcohol England, 2017. <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/statistics-on-alcohol-england-2017</u>
- Oka, M., Hirouchi, M., Tamura, M., Sugahara, S., & Oyama, T. (2013). Acamprosate {monocalcium bis (3-acetamidopropane-1-sulfonate)} reduces ethanol-drinking behavior in rats and glutamate-induced toxicity in ethanolexposed primary rat cortical neuronal cultures. *European journal of pharmacology*, *718*(1-3), 323-331.
- Palmer, R. H., McGeary, J. E., Francazio, S., Raphael, B. J., Lander, A. D., Heath, A. C., et al. (2012). The genetics of alcohol dependence: advancing towards systems-based approaches. *Drug and alcohol dependence*, 125(3), 179-191.
- Palpacuer, C., Duprez, R., Huneau, A., Locher, C., Boussageon, R., Laviolle, B., & Naudet, F. (2018). Pharmacologically controlled drinking in the treatment of alcohol dependence or alcohol use disorders: a systematic review with direct and network meta-analyses on nalmefene, naltrexone, acamprosate, baclofen and topiramate. *Addiction*. 113(2), 220-237.
- Pryce, R., Buykx, P., Gray, L., Stone, T., Drummond, C., & Brennan, A. (2017). Estimates of Alcohol Dependence in England based on APMS 2014, including Estimates of Children Living in a Household with an Adult with Alcohol Dependence Prevalence, Trends, and Amenability to Treatment. <u>https://www.sheffield.ac.uk/polopoly_fs/1.693546!/file/Estimates_of_Alcohol_Depe_ndence_in_England_based_on_APMS_2014.pdf</u>
- Riley, E. P., Infante, M. A., & Warren, K. R. (2011). Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders: An Overview. *Neuropsychology Review*, 21(2), 73-80.
- Wilson, K., Halsey, A., Macpherson, H., Billington, J., Hill, S., Johnson, G., ... & Abbott, P. (2012). The psycho-social rehabilitation of patients with alcohol-related brain damage in the community. *Alcohol and Alcoholism*, *47*(3), 304-311.
- Zahr, N. M., Pfefferbaum, A., & Sullivan, E. V. (2017). Perspectives on fronto-fugal circuitry from human imaging of alcohol use disorders. Neuropharmacology, 122, 189-200.